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NOTICE is hereby given that Thirtieth Annual General Meeting of Operational Energy Group India Limited will be
held through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) and the deemed venue for the meeting
will be Registered Office of the Company A, 5" Floor, Gokul Arcade — East Wing, No.2&2A, Sardar Patel Road, Adyar,
Chennai - 600 020 on Thursday ,12%" September 2024, at 09.00 A.M to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive consider and adopt:

a. To receive, consider, and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for the
Financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon.

b. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Usha Ramesh, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself
for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. ALTERATION OF OBJECTS CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY*

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, Section 4 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”), including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force, and the rules made thereunder consent of the shareholders of the Company be and is hereby
accorded, subject to the approval of the Registrar of Companies to alter the Main Object by adding a new sub clause
no.6 and 7 after the sub-clause 5 to the Clause Ill(A) of the Memorandum of Association of the company.

6.To carry on the business of manpower consultant and advisors to individuals, bodies corporate, societies,
undertakings, institutions, associations, government, local authorities for the recruitment of managerial personnel
and other relating to the administration, organization, production, storage and marketing sales and management
or industry and business and to carry on the business of industrial and business consultants.

7. To carry on the business of providing Manpower placement and recruiting, Selecting, Interviewing, Training and
Employing all types of executives, Middle Management Staff, Junior Level Staff, Workers, Labourers Skilled/Unskilled
required by various Industries and organizations including providing security services, Labour contractors, Industrial,
Commercial, Housing and other security services and workers for office management and to conduct employment
bureau and to provide consultancy and other services in connection with requirements of persons and manpower
supply in India and abroad.
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FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for giving effect to this resolution, Mr. S Ramesh DIN: 00052842 Managing Director of
the Company be and is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Company, to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as
deemed necessary, proper or desirable and to sign and execute all necessary documents, applications and returns
for giving effect to the aforesaid resolution along with filing of necessary E-form with the Registrar of Companies.”

/By Order of the Board/

For Operational Energy Group India Limited

Place: Chennai

Date: 09.08.2024 S. Ramesh
Executive Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00052842

NOTES:

1. Pursuant to General Circulars No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, No.20/2020
dated May 5, 2020, No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, No. 2/2022 dated
May 5, 2022 and No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 the latest being 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and in accordance with the
requirements laid down in Para 3 and Para 4 of the General Circular No.20/2020 dated 05.05.2020, Circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated
January 15, 2021, Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, SEBI/ HO/ CRD/PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/167 dated October
07, 2023 issued by the Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular”), companies are allowed to hold AGM
through VC, without the physical presence of members at a common venue. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars,
the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OVAM.

2. Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act 2013, and Rule 19 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time), a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote, instead of himself / herself and the proxy need not be
a Member of the Company. However, pursuant to MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, since the AGM will be held
through VC / OAVM, the physical attendance of Members in any case has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form is
not annexed to this Notice. Corporates in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013,
representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

3. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act in respect of the business under Item No. 2& 3 as
set out above and the relevant details of the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at this AGM as
required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (‘Secretarial Standard’) are annexed hereto. Requisite declarations
have been received from the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment.
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4. Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization, etc., authorizing its representative
to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said
Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Company by email through its registered email address to
cs@oegindia.com.

5. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.

6. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along
with the Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report
2023-24 will also be available on the Company’s website www.oegglobal.com, website of the Stock Exchange i.e.
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.msei.in and on the website of CSDL: www.evotingindia.com.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020
and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to
be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency.
The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the
AGM will be provided by CDSL.

8. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at
the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This
will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the
AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

9. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling
the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://oegglobal.com/. The Notice can also be
accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.msei.in. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-
Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e., www.evotingindia.com.

10.Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not updated their email addresses with the Company
are requested to update their email addresses with the RTA, Cameo Corporate Services Limited by using the
following URL: https://investors.cameoindia.com/ and enter the details as required. Members holding shares in
dematerialised mode are requested to register/update their email addresses with the relevant Depository
Participants.

11.The Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice, Registers and all other documents will be
available for inspection in electronic mode. Members can inspect the same up to the date of AGM, by sending an e-
mail to the Company at cs@oegindia.com
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12.The register of members and share transfer books of the company will remain closed from Monday 2nd
September 2024 to Thursday 12th September 2024(both days inclusive).

13.Members desiring to have any clarification on Accounts are requested to write to the Company at an early date
to enable the company to keep the information ready.

14.Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address, bank account details and email id to
their respective Depository Participants (DPs) in respect of shares held in electronic (demat) mode and in respect of
physical mode, to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company, Cameo Corporate Services Limited.

15.Members holding shares under multiple folios in the identical order of names are requested to consolidate their
holdings into one folio.

16.SEBI vide its notification dated 8 June 2018 has amended regulation 40 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 and
accordingly as per the amended regulation transfer of shares or securities shall be mandatory in demat form w.e.f.

1 April 2019. In this regard, Members are requested to dematerialize / demat their shares or securities held in
physical form.

17.Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

18.The Company has appointed Mr. Balaji Krishnamoorthy as Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting and
the voting process at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

19.The Members whose names appear in the Register of Members/ list of Beneficial Owners as received from
Depositories as on Wednesday 04th September 2024 (cut-off date”) are entitled to vote on the resolutions set forth
in this Notice.

/By Order of the Board/

For Operational Energy Group India Limited

Place: Chennai
Date: 09.08.2024

S. Ramesh
Executive Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00052842
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THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding
shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-
individual shareholders in demat mode.

(i)The voting period begins on Monday, 9™ September 2024 at 9.00 A.M(IST) and ends on Wednesday, 11%"
September 2024, 5.00 P.M(IST). During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 04" September 2024 may cast
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii)Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting
venue.

(iii)Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’
resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India.
This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the
shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without
having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing
ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares
in demat mode.

(iv)In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020, on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:
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Type of Login Method

shareholders

Individual 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing
Shareholders user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any

holding securities in | further authentication. The users to login to Easi / Easiest are requested to visit cdsl

Demat mode with | \yebsite www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab.
CDSL Depository

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at cdsl website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on
registration option.

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page.

The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see
the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual 1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website
Shareholders of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com

holding securities in | ejther on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is
demat mode with | |aunched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under
NSDL Depository ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
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home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and
a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting

Individual
Shareholders
(holding securities
in demat mode)
login through their
Depository
Participants (DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful
login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget

Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login

through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Individual Shareholders holding securities | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
in Demat mode with CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

‘ Helpdesk details ‘

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800
2109911

Individual Shareholders holding securities | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
in Demat mode with NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at :

022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-

individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v)Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than
individual holding in Demat form.
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1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Click on “Shareholders” module.

3) Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-

voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both
demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat
Bank account or in the company records in order to login.

Details ° If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the
OR Date of | member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

Birth (DOB)

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are
required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password
is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended
not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and
accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.
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(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification

code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to

scrutinizer for verification.

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote Voting only.

(xviii) Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on

to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

e After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

e The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong
mapping.

e It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; cs@oegindia.com
(designated email address by company) , if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the

CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the instructions
mentioned above for e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they
will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves
as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least three days prior to meeting mentioning their name,
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do
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not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance three days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company
email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask
questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible
to vote through e-Voting system available during the EGM/AGM.

10.1f any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and if the same
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such
shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the
shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant
(DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09911

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr.
Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 21 09911.

/By Order of the Board/

For Operational Energy Group India Limited

Place: Chennai
Date: 09.08.2024

S. Ramesh
Executive Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00052842
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Explanatory Statement under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 2:
Re-appointment of Mrs. Usha Ramesh, Director who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment.

Information [pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations,
2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretary of India] with
respect to proposed re-appointment of Mrs. Usha Ramesh:

Name Mrs. Usha Ramesh
Date of Birth 16-07-1963
Age 61 years
DIN 00053451
Nationality Indian
Date of appointment on Board 16-09-2016
Qualification B. Com
Expertise in area Business & marketing
Experience 39 years
No. of shares held in the Company 9,25,200
No of meetings of the board attended during | No. of board meetings held - 06
the year 2023-24 Attended - 06
Directorship held in other companies 1. Pacific Technical Service India Private Limited
2. Pacific Supplies Private Limited
3. Sujay Foundations Private Limited
4. OEG Solar Energy Private Limited
5. Yashas English School Foundation
6.South Ganga Waters Technologies Private Limited
7. Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Limited
8. OEG Defence and Aerospace Private Limited
9. Tecksk Projects Private Limited
Membership/ Chairmanship of committees of | Nil
other companies
Relationship with other Directors Wife of Mr. S. Ramesh, Managing Director
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Terms and Conditions for reappointment Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director, liable to retire by
rotation
Remuneration Other than sitting fee for attending Board meetings there is no
other remuneration.

Except Mrs. Usha Ramesh, being an appointee and her husband Mr. S. Ramesh, none of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution set out in Item No.2. The Board recommends the resolution as set out in ltem no.2 of the accompanying
notice for approval of members.

Item No.3:
Alteration of Objects Clause of the Memorandum of Association

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications the following resolution as Special
Resolution:

Operational Energy Group India Limited is presently active in the operations and maintenance of plants and
refineries across both Non-renewable and Renewable energy sector. The company has recently obtained the
registration certificate for recruitment and deployment of Indian workers with foreign Employers from the Ministry
of External Affairs under section 11 of the Emigration Act, 1983. The company is now authorized to recruit and
deploy Indian Workers with foreign Employers.

New clause outlining the business activity as specified in the license needs to be added to the company’s existing
Main objects of the Memorandum of Association to commence the business in this direction. The board of directors
believes that this diversification would significantly benefit the company by enhancing its current business
operations and diversifying its business portfolio.

To alter the Main Objects and to commence activity in new line of business requires approval of the members by
way of special resolution. The board recommends adding new sub-clauses no. 6 and sub-clause no.7 after sub-clause
5 to Clause llI(A) of the Memorandum of Association.

The Board of Directors place the resolution under the item no.3 of the Notice for approval of the members.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any way concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise in this special resolution.

/By Order of the Board/

For Operational Energy Group India Limited

Place: Chennai

Date: 09.08.2024 S. Ramesh
Executive Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00052842
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors hereby submits the Thirtieth Annual Report of your Company “Operational Energy Group India
Limited” together with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended, 31° March 2024.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Your Company’s results of operations is summarized below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Standalone Consolidated Standalone Consolidated
Revenue from Operations 28,648.82 31,479.05 25,185.90 26,345.13
Profit Be 1,638.95 2,173.10 1,665.51 1,553.03
fore Interest and Depreciation
Less: Finance Charges 56.16 57.45 194.54 195.07
Profit before depreciation and taxes 1,582.80 2,115.64 1,470.98 1,357.96
Less: Depreciation 72.28 78.56 94.75 104.54
Net Profit Before Tax 1,510.52 2,037.09 1,376.23 1,253.42
Less: Tax Expenses 305.64 375.20 319.01 395.50
Net Profit After Tax 1,204.88 1,661.88 1,057.22 857.92
Other Comprehensive Income 161.64 151.05 250.74 213.02
Total Comprehensive Income 1,366.52 1,812.93 1,307.95 1,070.94
Balance of Profit brought forward 4,858.09 6,235.43 3,550.14 5225.50
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares - - - -
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 6,224.61 7,872.91 4,858.09 6,235.43
DIVIDEND

For the year under review, your Board of Directors wants to reinvest the profits to conserve resources for future
expansion and meet the working capital requirements and hence they do not recommend dividends.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

No Dividend was declared and paid for the previous years, accordingly the provisions of Section 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Financial Performance
Standalone:

Revenue from operations for the fiscal year on the standalone basis has increased by 13.75% and was reported at
Rs. 28,648.82 lakhs, FY 2023-24 against the previous year’s Rs. 25,185.90 lakhs FY 2022-23. EBITDA has decreased
marginally by 1.59%. However, the company managed to control Finance cost and the depreciation and amortisation
expenses. As the result of effective financial control, the company has witnessed an increase of 9.76 percent in

16 |Page
Annual Report 2023-24




OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

profit before tax reported at Rs. 1,510.52 lakhs FY 2023-24 against previous years Rs. 1,376.23 lakhs FY 2022-23.
Adding other comprehensive income and deducting taxes the company has reported total income of Rs. 1366.52
lakhs for FY 2023-24 against Rs. 1307.95 lakhs for the FY 2022-23.

Consolidated:

The fiscal year has been brighter on the consolidated financial front. The revenue from operations surged by 19.49%
reporting at Rs. 31,479.05 lakhs for FY 2023-24 compared to Rs. 26,345.13 lakhs in FY 2022-23. The profit before
interest, depreciation and amortization expenses and taxes stood at Rs. 2173.10 lakhs for FY 2023-24 compared to
Rs. 1553.03 lakhs previous year 2022-23. The Profit after tax on the consolidated basis rose from Rs. 857.92 lakhs
Previous Year 2022-23 to Rs 1,661.88 lakhs Current Year 2023-24. An exceptional performance resulting in the surge
of 93.71% growth.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS IS AS UNDER

This year the Company’s performance has been eventful in achieving significant milestones. Your Company in the
aim to expand its operations in the new areas overseas and domestically has incorporated two wholly owned
subsidiaries.

1. OEG Defence and Aerospace Private Limited (domestic), and
2. OEG Nigeria Limited (overseas).

These strategic expansions reflect the company’s commitment to exploring new business area with forward- looking
approach.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND OUTLOOK

Power plant capacities under O & M Scope of Operational Energy Group India Limited O & M:

GROWTH IN TERMS OF MW (Mega Watts)
MWs In Domestic Growth % MWs In Overseas Growth %

AS on 31st March 2024 5390

0.89% 3.21%
AS on 31st March 2023 5342 498

The revenue generation of the company is not necessarily linear to the capacity of power generation.

FINANCE

During the year under review, there was no change in the credit limits with Axis bank as compared to the previous
year’s sanction. The company managed its finances by utilizing the cash credit facility as needed, ensuring that all
borrowings stayed well within the sanctioned limits.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

All related party transactions entered into during the year were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations. All Related Party Transactions were placed before the Audit Committee for prior approval. Prior
omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are repetitive in nature. During
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the year under review, there were no material contracts, arrangements or transactions entered into by the
Company with related parties pursuant to Section 188 of the Act. The details of the contracts or arrangements i.e.
transactions with Related Parties as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Act, during the year, are provided in
the accompanying financial statements and also in form AOC-2 which is appended as Annexure IV to the Board’s
Report.

The Company has formulated the Related Party Transaction Policy which is posted on the Company’s website under
the investors section at https://oegglobal.com/investor-relations/Codes%20Policies/.

The Directors draw attention of the Members to the Notes to the Financial Statements which sets out related party
disclosures as per Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(9) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015,
the Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy. A systematic approach has been adopted
that originates with the identification of risk, categorization, and assessment of identified risk, evaluating
effectiveness of existing controls and building additional controls to mitigate risk and monitoring the residual risk
through effective Key Risk Indicators (“KRI”). The policy has been meticulously crafted and refined, taking into
account a comprehensive risk assessment process. Controls have been established in alignment with the identified
risks to ensure timely and effective implementation. This policy is continually evolving, with implementation efforts
focusing on newly recognized risk factors. These efforts are being executed in a phased approach, with the ultimate
goal of integrating the policy across all business operations.

Risk assessment update is provided to the Risk Management Committee on a periodical basis. The Committee
assists the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors in overseeing the Company’s risk management processes
and controls.

The Board would like to state that there are no elements of risks threatening the existence of the Company.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as such, no amount on account of principal or
interest on deposits from the public was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company recognizes the responsibilities towards society and strongly intends to contribute towards
development of knowledge-based economy. We believe that access to quality education is a fundamental right
and a critical driver of social and economic development. Your company has constituted the Committee for
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) headed by the independent director and supports educational development
in rural areas through Yashas English School Foundation in Malli village, Srivilliputhur, Virudhunagar district, Tamil
Nadu. The school has been contributing to the field of education and has earned a good reputation in and around
the local area. The company has incurred Rs.29.04 lakhs for the year 2023-24 towards this cause.

The Company’s CSR Policy is available on our website, at https://www.oegglobal/investors Relations/Codes
Policies/ OEGIL CSR Policy.pdf. The annual report on our CSR activities is appended as Annexure | to the Board’s
report. The said initiatives are over and above the statutory requirement.
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SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.14,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fourteen Crores Only) divided into
1,40,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company is Rs.13,04,18,000/- (Rupees Thirteen Crores Four Lakhs
Eighteen Thousand only).
During the year under review there was no allotment of shares and there was no buyback of shares.

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company has established a whistle blower mechanism as per Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act,
2013, and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Company have formulated and
adopted Whistle Blower Policy which aims to provide a channel to the Directors and employees to report genuine
concerns or grievances, significant deviations from key management policies and report unethical behavior, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct. The mechanism provides adequate safeguards
against victimization of Directors and employees to avail the mechanism and direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The functioning of the Vigil Mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee
from time to time.

Your company hereby affirms that no Director/employee has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and that no complaints were received during the year.

POLICY FOR PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

Your Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted an anti-sexual harassment
policy and implemented an effective mechanism for the prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual
harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

No complaint of sexual harassment was received during the year.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Particulars of loans given, guarantees provided and investments made by the Company during the year 2023-2024,
as required under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, is disclosed in the notes to Financial Statements which forms part of this Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A separate statement containing the salient features of the Audited financial statement of all the Subsidiary and
Associate Companies is also enclosed in Form AOC-1 in Annexure Il as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made thereunder.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURES
SUBSIDIARY:

The company’s policy on material subsidiaries, as approved by the Board, is uploaded on the Company’s website at
https://oegglobal.com/investor-relations/Codes%20Policies/Remuneration%20Policy.pdf. The summary of the
performance of the subsidiaries is given below:
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M/s. Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited

Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited is the material subsidiary of our company. The company has a step-
down wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in Dubai in the name of Operational Energy Generation FZCO. The
Company in Dubai had obtained O&M contracts in Lebanon, and it is actively pursuing opportunities in Africa,
Nigeria and the surrounding areas.

Financial Overview:

The Company, through its operations overseas, concentrates on the expansion and growth of its subsidiary in Dubai.
The Company has reported Nil revenue from operations on standalone front for the year ended 31 March 2024 as
the same in the previous year. The loss for the period is reported at Rs. 2.56 lakhs against the previous year’s loss
of Rs. 2.45 lakhs.

On the consolidated financial front, the company has performed exceptionally well generating a Revenue of
Rs.1,602.61 lakhs during the year 2023-24 as against Rs. 452.05 lakhs total income from other sources reported
previously. The company on the consolidated front has reported a Net profit of Rs. 266.98 lakhs against the Net
loss at Rs. 376.50 lakhs the previous year marking a growth of 241%.

M/s. Maxitech Engineering Private Limited

All the projects undertaken by the Company have been completed duly. However, due to limited financial resources
and banking arrangements, the initiation of new projects has been deferred. The Company is actively exploring
possible ways to boost its resources in order to take up new projects in the near future.

Financial Overview

Due to the absence of operations, the Company has reported nil revenue for this fiscal year 2023-24, consistent
with the previous fiscal year, 2022-23. Consequently, the Company’s net loss has increased to Rs. 0.96 lakhs,
compared to the previous year’s loss of Rs. 0.82 lakhs.

M/s. Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Limited

On March 24, 2021, our company acquired a 51% ownership stake in M/s. Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Limited,
making it our subsidiary. The company was established with a focus on the operation and maintenance of
electricity generating stations, distribution systems, substations, and switchgear. It also aims to provide services
such as refurbishment, repair, renovation of power plants, startup/commissioning services, provision of
maintenance staff, repowering, efficiency improvement, and preparation of operations and maintenance manuals
for power plants in India and globally.

Financial Overview

During the year under review, the company actively explored opportunities to commence its business activities.
The directors, with foresight and a broader perspective, are focused on identifying opportunities within the green
energy sector to achieve sustainable growth. Plans are in place for significant expansion in this area. However,
due to the absence of operational activities, the company did not generate any revenue in the current fiscal year,
consistent with the previous year's performance.
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M/s. OEG Bangladesh Private Limited

OEG Bangladesh Private Limited is executing O&M of a 225MW Gas turbine power plant in Bangladesh. The
commercial operation started in June 2021, and it is running successfully.

Financial Overview

The Company has recorded 163, 012, 500 Taka revenue from operations for the year ended 31 March 2024 as
against 143,175,000 Taka in the previous year. The Company recorded a net Income of 21,610,060 Taka for the
year 2023-24 as against profit of 22,042,019 Taka for the previous financial year 2022-23.

M/s. OEG DEFENCE AND AEROSPACE PRIVATE LIMITED

Recognizing India's revolutionary growth in the Unmanned Aerial Vehicle (UAV) industry and driven by a vision to
pioneer a new wave of technological innovation, OEG Defence and Aerospace Private Limited was incorporated on
February 27, 2024, as a wholly owned subsidiary of Operational Energy Group India Limited. The company aims to
lead the way with its inventive spirit and cutting-edge advancements in the UAV sector.

Financial Overview
The Company is newly incorporated and is yet to commence its operations.
M/s. OEG NIGERIA LIMITED

Exploring the opportunities in Operations and Maintenance(O&M) sectors in Nigeria, and with the orders secured
from AshakaCem Limited (a subsidiary of Lafarge Nigeria), the company has taken a strategic step to facilitate the
execution of these O &M orders by incorporating a subsidiary in Nigeria.

The directors are optimistic that the new subsidiary will open up additional business opportunities and bring
business across Africa. The subsidiary named “OEG Nigeria Limited” was incorporated on 26" February 2024 as the
wholly owned subsidiary of Operational Energy Group India Limited. The commencement of business operations is
expected to take place at the earliest opportunity.

ASSOCIATES

M/s. Zuppa GEN5 Technologies Private Limited

The Company incorporated in March 2022 Jointly with Zuppa Geo Navigation Technologies Private Limited, with
the objective to manufacture, market and distribute applications/products and services related to drones used for
surveillance, videography and various other products including see through amour asset tracker, Vehicle telematics
systems, High accuracy Locational Awareness System etc.

Financial Overview

Since its incorporation, the company has been actively seeking the required approvals from the authorities.
However, it has not yet succeeded in securing any orders. Consequently, the company has remained non-
operational and has not generated any income in the year under review.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented by the
Company are adequate and in commensurate with their size and the nature of its operations. The Internal Financial
Control procedure adopted by the Company are adequate for safeguarding its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information. It also ensures compliance with prevalent statutes, regulations, management
authorisation, policies and procedures of the Company.

During the year under review, the Internal Financial Controls were operating effectively, and no material or serious
observation has been received from the Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

The Audit committee of the Board periodically reviews audit plans, observations, and recommendations of the
internal and external auditors, with reference to the significant risk areas and adequacy of internal controls and
keeps the Board of Directors informed of their observations, if any, from time to time.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Board’s Composition

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of
the Act and Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, with an appropriate combination of Executive, Non-Executive,
and Independent Directors. The Company has 4 (Four) Directors comprising of 1 (One) Executive Chairman &
Managing Director, 1 (One) Non-Executive Woman Director and 2 (Two) Independent Directors. The complete list
of Directors of the Company has been provided in the Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Report.

Director Appointment/Re-appointment

During the Year Mrs. Usha Ramesh (DIN: 00053451), who retired by rotation, was re-appointed as a Non-Executive
Director and Mr.N.S.R.Ganesh Babu (DIN: 06846188) who was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in the 28" Annual General Meeting held on 13 September 2022 for a one year term
effective from 16™ September 2022 up to 15 September 2023 was reappointed at the 29" Annual General Meeting
held on 14" September 2023. His second term will span three consecutive years, effective from 16" September
2023 to 15" September 2026.

Changes in Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Kartikeswar Sahoo, who was appointed on 21 May 2022 has vacated the office of Company Secretary effective
from 26 May 2023.

Ms. Ramya Sachin Inamdar (Membership Number A68463) was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company in the Board meeting held on 27 May 2023.

Apart from the above, there have been no other changes in Directors and KMP.
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on 31st March
2024:
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Mr. Subramanyam Ramesh — Executive Chairman & Managing Director
Mr. Sankarankovil Venkateswaran Natarajan - Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Ramya Sachin Inamdar- Company Secretary

MEETINGS AND COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE(S)

The details of the Meetings of the Board and Committee(s) of the Company held during the financial year are
disclosed in the Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report.

The Composition of Board and Committee(s) as on March 31, 2024, is disclosed in the Report on Corporate
Governance.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independence, as required pursuant to provisions of
the Section 149(7) of the Act, stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of
the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and are not disqualified from continuing as Independent
Directors of the Company. Further, all the Independent Directors have confirmed their registration on Independent
Directors Databank.

FAMILIARIZATION PROCESS

Senior management personnel of the Company, on a structured basis, interact with directors from time to time
to enable them to understand the Company’s strategy, business model, operations, service product offerings
markets, organization structure, finance, human resources, technology and risk management and such other
areas. The details of familiarization program for independent directors can be accessed from the Company’s
websitehttps://oegglobal.com/investorrelations/Disclosure%20Under%20Regulation%2046(2)%200f%20the%20
SEBI(LODR)%20Regulations%202015/9.%20Familiarization%20Programmes%20imparted%20t0%20Independent

%20Directors/

CODE OF CONDUCT

Pursuant to Regulation 26(3) of the Listing Regulations, all the Directors of the Company have affirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct of the Company.

GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES

The Company has adopted Governance Guidelines on Board Effectiveness. The Governance Guidelines cover
aspects related to composition and role of the Board, Chairman and Directors, Board diversity, definition of
independence, Director’s term, retirement age and Committees of the Board. It also covers aspects relating to
nomination, appointment, induction and development of Directors, Director Remuneration, and subsidiary
oversight, code of conduct, Board effectiveness review and mandates of Board committees.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Your Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy as required under Section 178(3) of the Act and the
Listing Regulations. The Remuneration policy of the Company covers the criteria for selection, appointments and
remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company
including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other related
matters. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy adopted by the Board is available on the website of the
company at https://oegglobal.com/investor-relations/Codes%20Policies/.
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OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board of Directors evaluated the annual performance of the Board as a whole, its committees and the directors
individually, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, with specific focus on the performance and effective functioning of
the Board and individual directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
and SEBI (Listing Obligations Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015, the Board of Directors during the year
carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors including Independent
Directors (without the participation of the Executive Director) and the Chairman.

The evaluation was done on various parameters covering effectiveness and to access the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board, Corporate Governance, etc.,
and the Independent Directors have expressed their satisfaction on the performance and effectiveness of the
Board.

The Board has also expressed satisfaction at the performance and contributions of the Independent Directors and
confirmed the continuance of their terms of appointment for effective board deliberations as required by Schedule
IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions contained in Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and belief and according to information and explanations obtained from the management confirm:

(a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

(b) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the financial
statements have applied consistently and judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent have been
made so as to give a true and fair view of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

(c) that proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

(d) the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(e) that proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORTS

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, a separate report on the Management Discussion and Analysis is enclosed as a part of this Annual
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, Report on Corporate Governance along with the certificate
from a Practicing Company Secretary certifying compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance, forms
part of this Annual Report.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)

The Company’s IT infrastructure is continuously reviewed and renewed in line with the business requirements and
technology enhancements. The Company has successfully implemented ERP programmer (SAP) and is constantly
reviewing and modifying the same.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption

As per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and Company’s policy to conserve energy the Company has been actively involved with the clients for reducing
the heat rate and auxiliary consumption of the power generating stations of the clients. Measures such as the
introduction of VFD, blending of fuel etc. are being constantly pursued by your Company, thereby contributing
towards energy conservation, and reducing our carbon footprint. The Company also encourages the client energy
audit to identify potential areas and scans the environment for innovative and reliable solutions. Efforts are
continuously being taken to reduce energy consumption in the plants. The Company is in active discussion with the
technology providers for reducing the emission from the power generating stations.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review were as follows:

Foreign exchange earnings Nil
Foreign exchange outgo Nil

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act, read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are enclosed as
Annexure lll to this Report.

Statement containing the particulars of top ten employees as required under Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report and is enclosed as
Annexure llIA.
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ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92 of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as
amended, the Annual Return of the Company is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at
https://www.oegglobal.com/investor-relations/Disclosure _Under Regulation 46(2) of SEBI(LODR)Regulations
2015/26. Annual Returns.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(2) of the Act and the rules made there under, Shareholders at the Twenty
Ninth Annual General Meeting held on 14" September 2023 appointed M/s Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam,
Chartered Accountants, Chennai, as the Statutory Auditors of the company for a period of 2(Two) consecutive years
to hold office, from the conclusion of the Twenty Ninth Annual General Meeting i.e. FY 2023-24 till the conclusion
of the Thirty First Annual General Meeting to be held at the end of the FY 2024-25.

The appointed auditors are eligible and satisfy the criteria stipulated under the Provisions of Section 141 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and has given consent to continue as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for Two (2) years
in the second term of their appointment.

Accordingly, the Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting passed the resolution appointing M/S Padmanabhan
Ramani & Ramanujam, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.002510S), as the Statutory Auditors in their
second term in the office for 2 (Two) years i.e from the conclusion of the 29™" Annual General Meeting to the
Conclusion of the 31 Annual General Meeting (Financial Years 2023-24 and 2024-25).

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Statutory Auditors’ Report issued by M/s/ Padmanbhan Ramani & Ramanujam for the year under review does
not contain any qualification, reservations, or adverse remarks. The Notes to the Accounts referred to in the
Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further clarifications under Section 134(3)(f)
of the Act. Further, pursuant to Section 143(12) of the Act, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported
any instances of fraud committed in the Company by its officers or employees.

COST AUDIT

The requirement of Cost Audit under The Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules 2014 is not applicable to the
Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, Mr. V. K. Shankararamann of
VKS&ASSOCIATES, Practicing Company Secretaries, has been appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 March 2024. The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the Company has complied with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines. The report of the Secretarial Auditor is enclosed as
Annexure V to this Report. The report is self-explanatory and does not call for any further comments.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers.

As per the requirements of Listing Obligation Regulations, Practicing Company Secretaries have undertaken
secretarial audits of subsidiaries for Financial Year2023-24. The Secretarial Audit Reports of the subsidiaries confirm
that they have complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines and that there were no
deviations or non-compliances.
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OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

The Secretarial Audit Reports of the unlisted subsidiary viz Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited, Pacific
Imperial Thermal Private Limited and Maxitech Engineering Private Limited has been annexed to this Report as
required by the provisions of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS
During the year, 6 (Six) Board meetings were held, the details of which are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report.

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS

The Board has constituted the following Committees of Directors:

a) Audit Committee,

b) Nomination & Remuneration Committee,

c) Stakeholder Relationship Committee

d) Vigil Mechanism Committee

e) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

f) Risk Management Committee

(g) Share Transfer Committee

The detailed composition of the above Committees along with the number of meetings and attendance at the
meetings are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

(
(
(
(
(
(

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the
end of the financial year 31 March 2024 and the date of the report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or the Courts or Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations in future.

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY
CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

No applications were made, and no proceedings were pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
during the year under the review.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT
AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH
THE REASONS THEREOF

No one time settlement took place during the year under review.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your directors wish to express their grateful appreciation for the continued co-operation received from the Banks,
Government Authorities, Customers, Vendors and Shareholders during the year under review.

Your directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation of the committed services of the
Executives, staff and employees of the Company.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Chennai

Date: 09.08.2024

S. Ramesh

DIN: 00052842
Executive Chairman & Managing Director
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OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

Annexure | to the Board’s Report
Annual Report on Corporate Social (CSR) Activities

(Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Operational Energy Group India Limited undertakes CSR initiatives through Yashas English School Foundation (“the
Foundation”) which was established in 2015 with a vision to promote English based education to children from
vulnerable backgrounds and rural area to improve and stabilise their foundation of learning. The Foundation works
towards enhancing skills of the local community and providing quality education to children in Malli Village,
Srivilliputtur and its surrounding areas. The Company has been committed to support the school in this cause, and
it has been consistently donating every year under the CSR obligations to be undertaken by the Company.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Name of Director Designation / Nature of Directorship Number of Number of
meetings of CSR meetings
Committee held of CSR

during the year Committee

attended
during the
year
Mr. S. Ramesh Executive Director & Managing Director|1
Mrs.Usha Ramesh Non- Executive Director 1
3 Mr. P. Swaminathan Chairman & Independent Director 1

3. The Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the
website of the company https://oegglobal.com/investor-relations/Codes%20Policies/.

4. The Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

SI. No.  Financial Year Amount available for set-off from  Amount required to be set-off for

preceding financial years (in Rs) the financial year, if any (in Rs)
Nil

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 12,83,56,081

7. (a) Two percent of the average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) is Rs. 25,67,122
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 25,67,122
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or uaspent for the financial year: Rs. 29, 04,000

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount Spent for

. . Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
the Financial Year. . .
Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
(InRs.) section 135(6). 135(5).
Amount. Date of transfer.| Name of the] Amount. Date of transfer.
Fund
29, 04,000 |Ni| ‘Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(9) (100 (11)

SI. No. Name Iltem Local |Location of the[Project |Amount |[AmountjAmount Mode |[Mode of
of the [from area project. duratiorjallocated [spent  transferred |of Impleme
Project. [the (Yes/No) . forthe |inthe [to Unspent |Imple |ntation -

list of project |current [CSR Account|ment [Through

activities (inRs.). [financiaffor the ation [Impleme

in Year |projectas | nting

Schedule (in Rs.). [per Section  Direct |Agency

VIl to the 135(6) (in  |(Yes/

Act. Rs.). No).

State |District NamiCSR

Regi
stra
tion
nu
mb
er.

Total B B - B B B B B B B

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Sl. IName of the (Item from the |Local |Location of |Amount Mode of Mode of implementation
No.[Project list of activities [area [the project. [spent for [implementation Through implementing
in schedule VII ((Yes/ the project | Direct agency.
to the Act. No). in Rs.). Yes/No). . .
otheAc o) State.District.(m ) (Yes/No) Name. [CSR registration
number.
Donations to |Promote the |Yes Virudhunagar|29, 04,000 [Yes NA NA

M/s. Yashas |cause of Tamil Nadu
1. English Schoolleducation to

to promote |underprivileged
education children
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29, 04,000

|Tota| | |

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 29, 04,000

(g) Excess amount for set off if any

Particular

section 135(5)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per

Amount (in Rs.)

Rs 25,67,122

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 29, 04,000
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs. 3,36,878
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or| Nil

activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years| Nil

[(iii)-(iv)]

(h) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Amount
remaining to
be spent in

SI. | Preceding Financial

Amount transferred |Amount spent Amount transferred to any
to Unspent CSR in the reporting fund specified under
Account under Financial Year Schedule VIl as per section

No. | Year.

section 135 (6) (in  (in Rs.). 135(6), if any. succeeding
i Name of Amount Date of ﬁnanua.l years.
the Fund|(in Rs). transfer. (inRs.)
1 2020-21 Nil 36,45,010 Nil Nil Nil Nil
> 2021-22 Nil 62,55,511 Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 2022-23 Nil 31,26,000 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total 1,30,26,521

Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) \ (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl. No. |Project ID. Name of the [Financial Project [Total Amount spent [Cumulative [Status of
Project. 'Year in which |duration amount on the project jamount the
the project allocated [in the reportingspent at theproject -
was for the Financial Year |end of Complet
commenced. project (in |(in Rs). reporting |ed
Rs.). Financial |/Ongoin
Year. (in Rs.)|g.
1 NIL
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|Tota| | |

9. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Chennai

S. Ramesh
Date: 09.08.2024 DIN: 00052842

Executive Chairman & Managing
Director
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Annexure Il to the Board’s Report

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint
ventures.

Part “A”: Subsidiaries Rs. In Lakhs

Name of the Pacific Technical | Maxitech Pacific OEG Operational
. subsidiary Service India Engineering Imperial Bangladesh Energy
Private Limited Private Thermal Private Limited Generation,
(PTSIPL) Limited Private FZCO
Limited (Subsidiary of
PTSIPL)
1 | Reporting period for | 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24
the subsidiary
concerned, if
different from the
holding company’s
reporting period
2 | Reporting currency Rupees Rupees Rupees Bangladeshi U.S. Dollars
and Exchange rate as Taka
on the last date of
the relevant financial
year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries

3 | Share capital 1.00 80.00 10.00 41.60 0.23
4 | Reserves & Surplus 40.47 (312.43) (1.124) 504.82
22.53
5 | Total Assets 59.59 62.99 8.994 1085.30 50.72
(Excluding
investments)
6 | Total Liabilities 33.92 295.43 0.118 538.65 27.96
7 | Investments 15.80 - - - -
8 | Turnover - - - 1630.13 19.36
9 | Profit/ (Loss) Before | (2.56) (0.96) (0.454) 308.71 3.26
Taxation
10| Tax Expenses - - - 92.61 -
11| Profit/ (Loss) After (2.56) (0.96) (0.454) 216.10 3.26
Taxation
12| Proposed Dividend - - - - -
13| % of Shareholding 98% 70% 51% 88% -

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations — NA

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year — NA
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint
Ventures

SI.No  Particulars ‘ Associate Company ‘
1. Name Zuppa OEG GENS5
Technologies Private
Limited
2. Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date
31.03.2024
3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the Company on the year end:
4, No. of shares 49,999
5. Amount of Investment in Associates / Joint Venture (Rs.) 499990/-
6. Extending of Holding 49.99%
7. Description of how there is significant influence Represented on Board
8. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated N.A.
9. Net Worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance She| Nil
(Rs.)
10. Profit/Loss for the year
I.Considered in Consolidation (Rs.) I.  (5.00 lakhs)
I.Not Considered in Consolidation II. (-171.18 lakhs)

For and on behalf of the board of Directors

Place: Chennai
Date: 09.08.2024 S. Ramesh
Executive Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00052842
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Annexure Il to the Board’s Report

Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014

i. The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees and the percentage

increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary of
the Company for the financial year:

Remuneration to Directors

Sl. No Directors Designation Nature of |Percentage

earning Ratio to
Median Salary

1 Mr. S. Ramesh Executive Chairman and Managing Director | Salary 33.02
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel
2 Mr. S. V. Natarajan Chief Financial Officer Salary 11.56
3 Ms. Ramya Sachin Inamdar | Company Secretary Salary 2.75

Note:

* No remuneration was paid to Non-Executive Directors and the Independent Directors other than the sitting fees
for attending the Board and the Committee meetings to Mr.N.S.R.Ganesh Babu (Non-Executive Independent
Director) and Mrs.Usha Ramesh (Non- Executive Director).

ii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 8.20%
iii. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 2585

iv. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel
in the last financial year its Percentile increases in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point
out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average percentiles increase in the salaries of employees other than managerial personnel was: 7.59%

Average increase in remuneration of Managers was: 1.54%.

v. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy, applicable for Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel, and other employees, adopted by the Company.

For and on behalf of the board of Directors

Place: Chennai
Date: 09.08.2024 S. Ramesh
Executive Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00052842
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Annexure IlIA to the Board’s Report
Particulars of Employees in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment of Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

SINo Employees Name Designation Educational = Date of Remune | % of Relative of
Qualification| Joining ration Share any director
Paid in held if  or manager
Lakhs any of the
company

1. Ramesh S Managing MBA 01 Jul 7.00 38.97 No
Director (1) 2002

2. Vijay R Vice President B-Tech 05 May 2.50 5.76 Yes
2017

3. Natarajan S.V. Chief Financial ACA 01 May 2.45 | 0.0020 No
Officer 2006

4, Sivashankar CJ Senior Vice BE, MBA 21 May 1.99 - No
President- 2010

O&M

5. Pradeep Kumar Regional Head BE, MBA 01 Aug 1.96 - No
Ojha 2012

6. Subhash Kumar Plant Manager DME, AMIE, | 12 July 1.71 - No
Rao BOE 2021

7. Ananda Chandra | General B-Tech 10 Jan 1.53 - No
Bisoi Manager 2022

8. Maddula Ramesh | Plant Manager B.E 28 Aug 1.35 - No
2018

9. Vineet Kumar Jain | Plant Manager B.E 26 June 1.30 - No
2023

10. | Atulya Prakash Project Manager | DEEE, B-Tech| 18 Apr 1.25 - No
2022

For and on behalf of the board of Directors
Place: Chennai
Date:09.08.2024 S. Ramesh

Executive Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00052842
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Annexure |V to the Board’s Report

FORM NO. AOC.2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section
(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL
2. Details of contracts or arrangement or transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The contracts mentioned below are below the limits prescribed under Regulation 23 (1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015

Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of the  Date(s) of Amount paid as
related party contracts/arrangem  contracts/arrangem | contracts or approval by the advances, if

and nature of ents/transactions ents/transactions arrangements or Board, if any:

relationship transactions
including the value,

1 S. Ramesh, Leasing of property | Agreement As per Lease Appropriate Nil
Managing for rent renewed every year | Agreement approvals have
Director been taken for
the RPT
2 South Ganga Service Charges for | Agreement As per Contract Appropriate Nil
Waters water treatment Renewed Yearly Agreement approvals have
Technology, been taken for
Company in the RPT

which directors
are interested

3 Sudarshan Normal Until retirement/ Formal Letter of Appropriate NA
Ramesh Employment with resignation/ Employment approvals have
Son of Mr. S. the company termination/whiche been taken for
Ramesh, ver is earlier RPT
Managing
Director

4 Vijay Ramesh Normal Until retirement/ Formal Letter of Appropriate NA
Son of Mr. S. Employment with resignation/ Employment approvals have
Ramesh, the company termination/whiche been taken for
Managing ver is earlier RPT
Director

6 Kavitha Normal Until retirement/ Formal Letter of Appropriate NA
Natarajan Employment with resignation/ Employment approvals have
Wife of Chief the company termination/whiche been taken for
Financial Officer ver is earlier RPT

The above transactions are within the limits prescribed in Section188 of the Act and fall below the limit of 10% of the consolidated turnover
as prescribed in Explanation to Regulation 23(1) of LODR.

For and on behalf of the board of Directors

Place: Chennai
Date: 09.08.2024 S. Ramesh
Executive Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00052842
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Annexure V to the Board’s Report

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Operational Energy Group India Limited
(L40100TN1994PLC028309)

A, 5" Floor, Gokul Arcade —East Wing,
No.2 & 2A, Sardar Patel Road, Adyar,
Chennai- 600020.

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Operational Energy Group India Limited (L40100TN1994PLC028309) (hereinafter
called the company) during the financial year from April 1, 2023, to March 31, 2024 (“the year” / “audit period” /
“period under review”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained by
Operational Energy Group India Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31 March 2024, according
to the provisions of:

i.The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under.
ii.Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.
iii.The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(‘SEBI Act’): -
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
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f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client.

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

e Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India

e The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s), if applicable.
o SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations,2015

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned in 24A SEBI Report. (Pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 and SEBI Circular No.CIR/CFD/CMD/27/2019 Dated 8" February
2019.

Annual Secretarial Compliance report (ASC) submitted by the listed entity to the Stock exchanges within 60 days
from the end of the financial year.

Annual secretarial audit report: In order to avoid duplication, the listed entity and its unlisted material subsidiaries
shall continue to use the same Form No. MR-3 as required under Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there
under for the purpose of compliance with Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as well.

| hereby report that:

1 In my opinion, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Company has
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The members are
requested to read this report along with our letter of even date annexed to this report as Annexure — A.

During the period under review, and also considering the compliance related action taken by the Company after
March 31, 2024, but before the issue of this report, the Company has, to the best of our knowledge and belief and
based on the records, information and explanations furnished to us;

2 Complied with the applicable provisions/clauses of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, and Agreements mentioned
under paragraph (i) to (v) above; except the following forms have been filed late with additional filing fees.

SI. No Form No SRN No. Date of filing Paid with delay with
additional fees
1 MGT-14 AA1847484 08.04.2023 Yes
2 CHG-4 AA2085623 28.04.2023 NA
3 CHG -1 AA2906237 26.06.2023 Yes
4 DPT-3 AA2965962 20.06.2023 NA
5 DIR-12 AA3103725 26.06.2023 NA
6 MGT-14 AA3026156 26.06.2023 NA
7 MGT-14 AA4307886 25.08.2023 NA
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8 ADT-1 F64672108 20-09.2023 NA
9 MGT-15 F64669674 20.09.2023 NA
10 AOC-4-XBRL F76340801 31.10.2023 Yes
11 MGT-14 AA5123353 11.10.2023 NA
12 MGT-7 F79787941 10.11.2023 NA
13 AOC-4 CSR F89388615 03.01.2024 NA

I have been informed that, during/in respect of the year:

The Company was not required to comply with the following laws / guidelines / regulations and consequently was
not required to maintain any books, papers, minute books or other records or file any forms / returns under:

i.Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999;
ii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
iii.Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; and
iv.Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009.

3The other laws as are applicable specifically to the Company are as under:
i. Income Tax Act, 1961
ii. Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017
iii. Employees State Insurance Act, 1948
iv. Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923
v. Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provident Act, 1952
vi. Minimum Wages Act, 1948
vii. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
viii. TamilNadu Shops and Establishments Act, 1947
ix. Labour Relations Act, 1995

| further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors.

| further report that:
There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with its size and operations to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the Audit period:
Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) read with Schedule
V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company,

e Mrs. Usha Ramesh (Din: 00053451), who retired by rotation and Re-appointed as a non-executive Women

director.

e Re-Appointment of Mr. Ganesh Babu as the Independent Director

e Mr. Kartikeswar Sahoo — resignation as Company Secretary with effect from 26.5.2023

e Ms. Ramya Sachin Inamdar— appointment as Company Secretary with effect from 27.5.2023
Other than the aforesaid there were no specific events / actions having a major bearing on the company’s affairs
in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and standards etc referred to above.
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| further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took

place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

The Board Met 6 times in the financial year 2023-24 Viz., on

02.05.2023
27.05.2023
10.08.2023
12.10.2023
10.11.2023
12.02.2024

Circular Resolutions 1 for the Year 2023-24 has been passed on 09.12.2023.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings for the Year 2023-24 were held on 27.05.2023.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings for the Year 2023-24 were held on 27.5.2023 and
10.08.2023.

Stakeholders Relation-ship Committee Meeting for the year 2023-24 was held on 12.2.2024.

Vigil Mechanism Committee Meeting and Whistle Blower Committee Meeting for the year 2023-24 were held
on 12.2.2024.

Risk Management Committee Meeting for the year 2023-24 were held on 10.11.2023 and12.2.2024.

Share Transfer Committee Meeting for the year 2023-24 were held on 12.2.2024.
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The Audit Committee Meetings Met 5 times in the financial year 2022-23 Viz., on

02.05.2023
27.05.2023
10.08.2023
10.11.2023
12.02.2024

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through the meeting and form part of the minutes.

FRAUD REPORTING

| further report that during the financial year ended 31/03/2024 there is no fraud, pursuant to provisions of Section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.
The company has the following subsidiaries:

e Maxitech Engineering Private Limited

e Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited

e Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Limited
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For which secretarial audit is required to be complied as per the SEBI

Further during the financial year the company incorporated two new wholly owned subsidiary

1. “OEG Defence Aerospace Private Limited” in India with the Authorised and Paid up share capital of Rupees
Fifteen Lakhs only(Rs. 15, 00,000/-) on February 27, 2024, in India and

2. “OEG Nigeria Limited” private company limited by shares as the wholly owned subsidiary under the authority of

“Federal Republic of Nigeria” in the country Nigeria on 26th February 2024.

The secretarial audit for the newly incorporated Indian company shall be applicable from the next assessment year

i.e. 2024-25.

| further report that during the audit period the company has 4 directors, comprising of 1 Executive Chairman &
Managing director,1 Non-Executive Director and 2 Independent Director,1 Company Secretary and 1 Chief Financial

Officer/Key Managerial Personnel:

DIN/PAN NAME

DESIGNATION

DATE OF
APPOINTMENT

00052842 Subramanyam Ramesh

Executive Chairman &Managing director | 16.09.2016

Sankarankovil Venkateshwaran

Place: Chennai
Date: 15.05.2024
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ACRPN2136K . Chief Financial Officer 04.10.2018
Natarajan
00053451 Ramesh Usha Non- Executive Women Director 16.09.2016
06846188 Ganesh Babu Independent Director 16.09.2022
02603984 Panchapagesan Swaminathan Independent Director 16.09.2016
ABSPI1433Q | Ramya Sachin Inamdar Company Secretary 27.05.2023
For VKS&ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

V K Shankararamann
F.C.S No. 5592

C.P. No.5255

QR: 74

PR: 332

UDIN: FO05592F000336549

Annual

Report 2023-24




OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

Annexure — A to Secretarial Audit Report of even date
To

The Members

Operational Energy Group India Limited
(L40100TN1994PLC028309)

A, 5th Floor, Gokul Arcade —East Wing,
No.2 & 2A, Sardar Patel Road, Adyar,
Chennai- 600020

My Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR-3) of even date for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, is to be read
along with this letter.

1. The Company’s management is responsible for maintenance of secretarial records and compliance with the
provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on the secretarial records produced for my audit.

2. | have followed such audit practices and processes as | considered appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.

3. While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing this report, | have also considered compliance related action
taken by the Company after March 31, 2024, but before the issue of this report.

4. | have considered compliance related actions taken by the Company based on independent legal / professional
opinion obtained as being in compliance with law.

5. I'have verified that secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see whether the correct facts are reflected
therein. | also examined the compliance procedures followed by the Company on a test basis. | believe that the
processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

6. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

7. | have obtained the Management’s representation about compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events, wherever required.

8. My Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Chennai
Date:15.05.2024 For VKS&ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

V K Shankararamann
F.C.S No. 5592

C.P. No.5255

QR :74

PR:332
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited
(U74900TN1993PTC024165)

5th Floor, East Tower, Gokul Arcade,

No: 2, Sardar Patel Road, Adyar,

Chennai TN 600020 IN

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited (U74900TN1993PTC024165)
(hereinafter called the company) during the financial year from April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 (“the year” / “audit
period” / “period under review”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained by Pacific
Technical Services India Private Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31 March 2024, according
to the provisions of:

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under;
(ii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.
(iii) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008.
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
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g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(Since Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited is a Subsidiary Company of Operational Energy Group India
Limited (holding company).

Note: Secretarial Compliance Report applied only to Listed Entities (Not applicable to Material unlisted subsidiary)
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I hereby report that:

1. In my opinion, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Company
has complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The members
are requested to read this report along with our letter of even date annexed to this report as Annexure — A.

During the period under review, and also considering the compliance related action taken by the Company after
March 31, 2024, but before the issue of this report, the Company has, to the best of our knowledge and belief and
based on the records, information and explanations furnished to us:

2. Complied with the applicable provisions/clauses of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, and Agreements mentioned
under paragraph (i) to (v) above; except the following forms have been filed late with additional filing fees.

SI. No | Form No SRN No. Date of filing Paid with delay with additional fees
1 DPT-3 AA3016211 21.06.2023 NA
2 AOC-4 (XBRL) F71186233 25.10.2023 NA
3 MGT-14 AA5898032 16.10.2023 NA
4 DIR-12 AA5900917 30.10.2023 NA
5 MGT-7 F81265134 18.11.2023 NA
I have been informed that, during/in respect of the year:

The Company was not required to comply with the following laws / guidelines / regulations and consequently was
not required to maintain any books, papers, minute books or other records or file any forms / returns under:

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(ii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(iii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; and

(iv) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009.

3. The other laws as are applicable specifically to the Company are as under:
i.Income Tax Act, 1961
ii.Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017
iii.Tamil Nadu Shops and Establishments Act, 1947
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| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. (Pursuant to provisions of Sec.164 (2) and 184(1) of companies Act, 2013 DIR-
8 AND MBP-1 has been received from all members)

The Board Met 5 times in the financial year 2023-24 Viz., on

27.05.2023
02.08.2023
21.08.2023
09.11.2023
09.02.2024
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through the meeting and form part of the minutes.

FRAUD REPORTING

I further report that during the financial year ended 31/03/2024 there is no fraud, pursuant to provisions of
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

The company has 1 Holding Company namely

e Operational Energy Group India Limited (L40100TN1994PLC028309)
For which secretarial audit has been complied as per 24A SEBI Report.

| further report that during the audit period the company has appointed an Independent Director of the holding
company “Operational Energy Group India Limited (L40100TN1994PLC028309) on the board of the company
pursuant to the provisions of the Regulation 24(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015. There are four directors on the board during the audit period 2023-24:

DIN/PAN NAME DESIGNATION DATE OF APPOINTMENT
00052842 Subramanyam Ramesh DIRECTOR 07.01.1993
00053451 Ramesh Usha DIRECTOR 07.01.1993
06792877 Ramesh Vijay DIRECTOR 30.09.2020
06846188 Ganesh Babu DIRECTOR 29.09.2023

FOR VKS&ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries
Place: Chennai
Date: 17.05.2024 V K Shankararamann
F.C.S No. 5592
C.P. No.5255
Peer Reviewer Code: 332
UDIN: FO05592F000386742
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Annexure — A to Secretarial Audit Report of even date

To,

The Members,

Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited
(U74900TN1993PTC024165)

5th Floor, East Tower, Gokul Arcade,

No: 2, Sardar Patel Road, Adyar,

Chennai TN 600020 IN

My Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR-3) of even date for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is to be read
along with this letter.

1. The Company’s management is responsible for maintenance of secretarial records and compliance with the
provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on the secretarial records produced for my audit.

2. | have followed such audit practices and processes as | considered appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.

3. While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing this report, | have also considered compliance related action
taken by the Company after March 31, 2024 but before the issue of this report.

4. | have considered compliance related actions taken by the Company based on independent legal / professional
opinion obtained as being in compliance with law.

5. lI'have verified that secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see whether the correct facts are reflected
therein. | also examined the compliance procedures followed by the Company on a test basis. | believe that the
processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

6. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

7. | have obtained the Management’s representation about compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events, wherever required.

8. My Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Chennai
Date: 17.05.2024 FOR VKS&ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

V K Shankararamann

F.C.S No. 5592

C.P. No.5255

PR Code: 332

UDIN: FO05592F000386742
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Maxitech Engineering Private Limited
(U74900KA2012PTC065818)

77/1, Jakkasandra,

8t Cross Malleswaram,

Bangalore KA 560003 IN

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Maxitech Engineering Private Limited (U74900KA2012PTC065818) (hereinafter called
the company) during the financial year from April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 (“the year” / “audit period” / “period
under review”).Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Maxitech
Engineering Private Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31 March 2024, according to the
provisions of:

i. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
ii. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
iii. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(‘SEBI Act’):-
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
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f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(Since Maxitech Engineering Private Limited is a Subsidiary Company of Operational Energy Group India Limited
(holding company).

Note: Secretarial Compliance Report applied only to Listed Entities (Not applicable to Material unlisted subsidiary)
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| hereby report that:

1. In my opinion, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Company
has complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The members
are requested to read this report along with our letter of even date annexed to this report as Annexure — A.

During the period under review, and also considering the compliance related action taken by the Company after
March 31, 2024, but before the issue of this report, the Company has, to the best of our knowledge and belief and
based on the records, information and explanations furnished to us

2. Complied with the applicable provisions/clauses of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, and Agreements mentioned
under paragraph (i) to (v) above; except the following forms have been filed late with additional filing fees.

SI. No Form No SRN No. Date of filing Paid with delay with additional fees
1 DPT-3 AA2965125 20/06/2022 NA
2 AOC-4(XBRL) F70082649 21/10/2023 NA
3 MGT-7 F81263733 18/11/2023 NA

I have been informed that, during/in respect of the year:

The Company was not required to comply with the following laws / guidelines / regulations and consequently was
not required to maintain any books, papers, minute books or other records or file any forms / returns under:

(v) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Overseas Direct Investment;

(vi) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(vii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(viii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; and

(ix) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009.

3. The other laws as are applicable specifically to the Company are as under:

i.Income Tax Act, 1961
ii.Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017
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iii.The Karnataka Shops & Commercial Establishments Act,1961

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. (Pursuant to provisions of Sec.164 (2) and 184(1) of companies
Act, 2013 DIR-8 AND MBP-1 has been received from all members)

The Board met 5 times in the financial year 2023-24 Viz., on

27.05.2023
02.08.2023
11.08.2023
09.11.2023
08.02.2024
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through the meeting and form part of the minutes.

FRAUD REPORTING

I further report that during the financial year ended 31/03/2023 there is no fraud, pursuant to provisions of
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

The company has 1 Holding Company namely

. Operational Energy Group India Limited (L40100TN1994PLC028309)
For which secretarial audit has been complied as per 24A SEBI Report.
| further report that during the audit period the company has five directors:

DIN/PAN NAME DESIGNATION DATE OF APPOINTMENT
00052854 Sankarankovil Venkateswaran Natarajan | Director 30/12/2016
05172087 | Sampath Kumar Ananda Raj Director 08/09/2012
05264897 Nagarajan Mohan Kumar Director 01/01/2017
05307753 Lakshmi Ambekar Suryaprakash Director 08/09/2012
07105390 Manjula Anandaraj Director 24/02/2015

For VKS&ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries
Place: Chennai

Date: 17.05.2024 V K Shankararamann
F.C.S No. 5592

C.P. No.5255
QR Code:74
PR CODE: 332
UDIN FO05592F000386720
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Annexure — A to Secretarial Audit Report of even date

To,

The Members,

Maxitech Engineering Private Limited
(U74900KA2012PTC065818)

77/1, Jakkasandra,

8™ Cross Malleswaram,

Bangalore KA 560003 IN

My Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR-3) of even date for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is to be read
along with this letter.

1. The Company’s management is responsible for maintenance of secretarial records and compliance with the
provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on the secretarial records produced for my audit.

2. | have followed such audit practices and processes as | considered appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.

3. While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing this report, | have also considered compliance related action
taken by the Company after March 31, 2024, but before the issue of this report.

4. | have considered compliance related actions taken by the Company based on independent legal / professional
opinion obtained as being in compliance with law.

5. I'have verified that secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see whether the correct facts are reflected
therein. | also examined the compliance procedures followed by the Company on a test basis. | believe that the
processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

6. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

7. | have obtained the Management’s representation about compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events, wherever required.

8. My Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Chennai
Date: 17.05.2024 For VKS&ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

V K Shankararamann
F.C.S No. 5592
C.P. No.5255

QR Code:74
PR Code: 332
UDIN: FO05592F000386720
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Limited
(U40108TN2021PTC142390)

5th Floor, Gokul Arcade,

2, Sardar Patel Road, Adyar,

Chennai TN 600020 IN

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Limited (U40108TN2021PTC142390) (hereinafter
called the company) during the financial year from April 1, 2023, to March 31, 2024 (“the year” / “audit period” /
“period under review”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained by Pacific
Imperial Thermal Private Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31 March 2024, according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under;
(ii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.
(iii) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
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f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(Since Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Limited is a Subsidiary Company of Operational Energy Group India Limited
(holding company).

Note: Secretarial Compliance Report applied only to Listed Entities (Not applicable to Material unlisted subsidiary)
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| hereby report that:

1. In my opinion, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Company
has complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The members
are requested to read this report along with our letter of even date annexed to this report as Annexure — A.

During the period under review, and also considering the compliance related action taken by the Company after
March 31, 2024, but before the issue of this report, the Company has, to the best of our knowledge and belief and
based on the records, information and explanations furnished to us:

2. Complied with the applicable provisions/clauses of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, and Agreements
mentioned under paragraph (i) to (v) above; except the following forms have been filed late with additional filing
fees.

SI. No Form No SRN No. Date of filing Paid with delay with additional fees

1 DPT-3 AA3085646 26.06.2023 NA

2 AOC-4 XBRL F70085725 21.10.2023 NA

3 MGT-7A F82275819 22.11.2023 NA

4 BEN-2 F89939243 10.01.2024 NA

I have been informed that, during/in respect of the year:

The Company was not required to comply with the following laws / guidelines / regulations and consequently was
not required to maintain any books, papers, minute books or other records or file any forms / returns under:

(i) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Overseas Direct Investment;

(ii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(iii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(iv) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; and

(v) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
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3. The other laws as are applicable specifically to the Company are as under:
i.Income Tax Act, 1961

ii.Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017

iii.Tamil Nadu Shops and Establishments Act, 1947
| further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. (Pursuant to provisions of Sec.164 (2) and 184(1) of companies
Act, 2013 DIR-8 AND MBP-1 has been received from all members).

The Board Met 5 times in the financial year 2023-24 Viz., on

27.05.2023
02.08.2023
21.08.2023
09.11.2023
09.02.2024
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority
decision is carried through the meeting and form part of the minutes.

FRAUD REPORTING

| further report that during the financial year ended 31/03/2024 there is no fraud, pursuant to provisions of
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

The company has 1 Holding Company namely

. Operational Energy Group India Limited (L40100TN1994PLC028309)

For which secretarial audit has been complied as per 24A SEBI Report.
| further report that during the audit period the company has two directors:

DIN/PAN NAME DESIGNATION DATE OF APPOINTMENT
00052842 Subramanyam Ramesh Director 24/03/2021
00053451 Usha Ramesh Director 24/03/2021

FOR VKS&ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries
Place: Chennai
Date: 17.05.2024

V K Shankararamann

F.C.S No. 5592

C.P. No.5255

QR Code:74

PR Code: 332

UDIN: FO05592F000386731

54 | Page
Annual Report 2023-24




OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

Annexure — A to Secretarial Audit Report of even date

To,

The Members,

Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Limited
(U40108TN2021PTC142390)

5th Floor, Gokul Arcade,

2, Sardar Patel Road, Adyar,

Chennai TN 600020 IN

My Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR-3) of even date for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is to be read
along with this letter.

1. The Company’s management is responsible for maintenance of secretarial records and compliance with the
provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on the secretarial records produced for my audit.
2. | have followed such audit practices and processes as | considered appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
3. While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing this report, | have also considered compliance related action
taken by the Company after March 31, 2024 but before the issue of this report.
4. | have considered compliance related actions taken by the Company based on independent legal / professional
opinion obtained as being in compliance with law.
5. lI'have verified that secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see whether the correct facts are reflected
therein. | also examined the compliance procedures followed by the Company on a test basis. | believe that the
processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.
6. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.
7. | have obtained the Management’s representation about compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events, wherever required.
8. My Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR VKS&ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Place: Chennai V K Shankararamann
Date: 17.05.2024 F.C.S No. 5592
C.P. No.5255
QR Code: 74
PR Code: 332

UDIN: FO05592F000386731
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
GLOBAL ECONOMY OVERVIEW

In 2023, the global economy demonstrated resilience despite facing significant challenges, including the lingering
effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, geopolitical tensions, and the ongoing Russia-Ukraine war. These events
disrupted supply chains and contributed to food and energy crises, leading to a surge in inflation, particularly in
developed countries. In response, central banks worldwide tightened monetary policies by raising interest rates to
control inflation, impacting economic activity and growth. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) projects global
economic growth to slow to 3.2% in 2024, mirroring the pace of 2023, reflecting the ongoing uncertainties. However,
the Reserve Bank of India holds a more optimistic outlook, expecting global growth to remain steady in 2024,
highlighting differing assessments of economic conditions.

Economic growth in several emerging markets and developing economies has surpassed expectations in 2023.
Another silver lining is the strongest recovery of the US economy among major economies, marked by a stronger
performance in private consumption. The GDP of the US increased from 1.9% in 2022 to 2.5% in 2023, whereas the
European Union GDP growth slowed from 3.6% in 2022 to 0.6% in 2023. On the other hand, China’s economy
expanded by 5.2% in 2023 from 3.0% in 2022. Global inflation continues to recede at a faster pace from 8.7% in
2022 to 6.8% in 2023, fostering optimism for further easing of financial conditions and improvement of monetary
policy frameworks, although uncertainty about the timing of interest rate reduction persists.

GLOBAL OUTLOOK

The global economic outlook for 2024 is marked by several challenges and opportunities. Elevated interest rates
and core inflation, combined with the withdrawal of fiscal support due to high debt levels, are likely to weigh on
economic activity. Additionally, economic uncertainties and heightened geopolitical tensions could exacerbate these
issues by driving up energy and commodity prices.

However, the risk of a severe economic downturn has lessened, thanks to faster disinflation and steady growth,
which have broadly balanced the risks to global economic expansion. Positive developments, such as stronger-than-
expected economic performance in the US and several large emerging market and developing economies, economic
stimulus measures in China, the resilience of Europe despite ongoing conflicts, and the easing of supply chain
bottlenecks, are expected to bolster the global economic outlook.

Following rapid expansion in 2023, the Asia-Pacific (APAC) region is projected to be the fastest-growing region in the
world economy in 2024, driven by robust domestic demand in East Asia and India.

(Source: IMF Economic Outlook, April 2024, EIA; World Bank; IEA; RBI MPC Meeting 2024)

INDIAN ECONOMY OVERVIEW

With robust domestic demand, economic reforms, and a burgeoning tech sector, India continues to show strong
economic performance. Its resilience and growth are providing a counterbalance to global uncertainties, making

it a key player in the world economy in 2024. It is the fifth-largest economy in the world and is poised to retain its
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position as the world's fastest-growing major economy. GDP growth maintained a strong pace, reaching 7.6% in
FY 2023-24, up from 7% in FY 2022-23. driven by strong domestic demand, moderate inflation, stable interest
rates, and robust investment activity.

The accelerated pace of economic reforms and increased capital expenditure facilitated construction activities has
created employment opportunities across country and is expected to be one of the top three economic powers in
the world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong partnerships.

India’s CPI inflation is on a downward trajectory and eased to 4.83% in April 2024. The RBI has thus far maintained
the policy repo rate at 6.50% with an aim to achieve the target of 4% inflation while supporting economic growth.
The government has also implemented an investor-friendly Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) policy, allowing 100%
FDI in most sectors through the automatic route, except for specific strategically important sectors. In the power
sector, 100% FDI is allowed under the automatic route for generation from all sources (except atomic energy),
transmission and distribution of electric energy, and Power Trading.

(Source: Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation; Ministry of Finance; RBI; Ministry of Commerce &
Industry)

INDIAN OUTLOOK

India’s economic outlook remains positive and is benefiting from its demographic dividend, a skilled and
productive workforce, improved physical and digital infrastructure, enhanced capital expenditure, and the
government's proactive policy measures. According to the IMF, the Indian economy is expected to advance steadily
at 6.8% in 2024 and 6.5% in 2025. On the other hand, the RBI’s forecast is more optimistic, projecting a higher GDP
growth of 7.0% for FY 2024-25, while CPI inflation is expected to decline to 4.5% in FY 2024-25.

India is rapidly emerging as the fastest-growing major economy and is projected to become one of the top three
global economic powers within the next 10-15 years. The Interim Budget for 2024-25 introduces a comprehensive
economic management strategy designed to sustain this growth. This strategy encompasses significant
investments in infrastructure development to enhance connectivity and productivity, the expansion of digital
public infrastructure to improve access to services and foster innovation, and reforms in taxation to simplify the
tax system and encourage a business-friendly environment. Additionally, proactive measures will be taken to
manage inflation and ensure price stability. Together, these initiatives aim to lay the groundwork for achieving the
vision of a 'Viksit Bharat' (Developed India) by 2047, marking a milestone in India's economic evolution.

GLOBAL POWER SECTOR REVIEW

The global power sector is significantly shifting its focus towards cleaner, more resilient and technologically
advanced systems. This was witnessed the fastest growth rate in two decades in the year 2023 as the renewable
energy capacity additions soared by almost 50%, reaching 510 gigawatts (GW) (Source: IEA). This surge was
supported by a substantial global investment of $1.77 trillion (Source: BNEF) in energy transition technologies,
reflecting a 17% year on year increase.

Clean technologies, including electric vehicles (EVs) and Distributed Energy Resources (DERs), are becoming
increasingly popular, supporting the drive toward decarbonization. Innovations like generative Al, virtual power

plants, and vehicle-to-grid integration are gaining traction, fostering synergies across diverse power systems. In
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the years ahead, these emerging technologies will need to seamlessly integrate with current systems to enhance
the industry's reliability, flexibility, efficiency, sustainability, and safety.

Renewables Growth

Global investment in renewable energy surged to $623 billion (Source: BNEF), marking an 8% increase from the
previous year. Renewables accounted for 35% of the total $1.77 trillion investment in clean energy technologies. By
the end of 2023, renewable generation capacity reached approximately 3,880 GW (Source: IRENA, IEA), reflecting a
notable 15% growth.

Green Hydrogen (H2)

The green hydrogen sector witnessed substantial growth, driven by increased policy support from various nations.
Investment in clean hydrogen surged, tripling to $10.4 billion in 2023 (Source: BNEF). By the end of 2023, 53
countries had unveiled hydrogen strategies, with another 30 in the process of crafting their plans. Vietnam, for
instance, set forth an ambitious strategy to produce between 100,000 and 500,000 metric tons of hydrogen by 2030,
with a target of reaching 20 million tons by 2050 (Source: BNEF). Indonesia completed its strategy, Mozambique
was preparing its plan, and the UK revised its green hydrogen strategy. Among the 53 nations with hydrogen
strategies, 22 outlined targets for electrolyser capacities, totalling 114 GW by 2030, with 60% concentrated in the
Europe, Middle East, and Africa region. By 2030, approximately 16 markets aim to collectively produce 24.62 million
tons of hydrogen annually (Source: BNEF).

Nuclear and SMRs (small nuclear reactors)

The nuclear sector is experiencing a revival, driven by the need for energy security and decarbonization. By
December 2023, 59 reactors, totalling 61 GW, were under construction worldwide. However, investment dipped
slightly to $32.7 billion (Source: BNEF) due to cost overruns and delays. With large reactors facing constraints, there
is a growing focus on Small Modular Reactors (SMRs), with governments rolling out new funding plans in 2023.

Electric Vehicle

In 2023, investment in electrified transport rose by 36% to $634 billion (Source: BNEF), surpassing renewable energy.
Global EV sales increased by 30% to over 13.5 million (Source: BNEF), and EV charging points grew by 50% to 4
million (Source: BNEF). Europe led in ultra-fast chargers, tripling to 76,000, while the Netherlands had the largest
public charging network in Europe, supporting widespread EV adoption.

INDIAN POWER SECTOR REVIEW

As of March 31, 2024, India, the world's most populous country, ranks as the third-largest electricity producer
globally, with an installed generation capacity of nearly 442 GW. Following extensive reforms and the opening up of
the sector, India has made significant investments to boost its power generation. Since the Electricity Act of 2003,
conventional power capacity has expanded significantly. Recently, investment focus has shifted toward renewable
energy to meet both national and international climate goals.

The Indian government has set ambitious Renewable Energy targets, aiming for a significant portion of the country’s
energy mix to come from clean sources. Renewable energy efforts were ramped up, with the government
committing to auction 50 GW of renewable capacity each year until Financial Year 2028. In 2023, a record 22.9 GW
was auctioned, more than double the previous year's total. India had set a target for an installed Renewable Energy
capacity of 500 GW by 2030. The installed Renewable Energy capacity (including large hydro) has increased by
around 128% since 2014.
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In 2023, electric vehicle (EV) sales in India exceeded 1.5 million units, marking a 49% year-on-year increase despite
significant reductions in FAME Il subsidies for electric two-wheelers (Source: Vahan Dashboard). The central
government further supported electrification by approving the “PM - eBus Sewa” program to deploy 10,000
electric buses nationwide and introducing standard operating procedures under the PLI program for automotive
companies. Concurrently, leading automotive companies ramped up their efforts in EV charging infrastructure.

GOVERNMENT POLICIES AND INITIATIVES

Government initiatives in the power sector focus on enhancing domestic production and promoting clean energy.
The Production Linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme offers financial incentives for manufacturing renewable energy
equipment, while the National Green Hydrogen Mission emphasizes clean energy development.

The PLI scheme for solar PV manufacturing with a budget of INR 24,000 crore was introduced, alongside a Basic
Customs Duty of 25% on solar cells and 40% on solar PV modules starting April 1, 2022.

To facilitate green energy transmission, policies such as waivers on Inter State Transmission Charges and supportive
discom policies were enacted. The government set targets for increasing the renewable energy share, aiming for
29.91% by 2024-25 and 43.33% by 2029-30.

This new trajectory marks a significant move toward a greener and more sustainable energy landscape, aiding
entities in long-term planning. These drivers are anticipated to keep advancing India's renewable energy sector.
As costs continue to decline, technologies improve, and the government remains committed to clean energy goals,
India is poised to become

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Operational Energy Group India Limited (OEGIL) manages over 5,000 MW of power plants across India. With a
subsidiary in Dubai, the company oversees power plant operations in Lebanon and has recently expanded into
Nigeria, establishing a new subsidiary and preparing to commence operations there. In Bangladesh, OEGIL
operates through its subsidiary, OEG Bangladesh Private Limited, which has signed an O&M contract for a 225 MW
gas-based combined cycle power plant now in operation.

Beyond power plant management, OEGIL is diversifying into turnkey project execution, successfully securing
several contracts, with execution underway in the current financial year. Additionally, the company is broadening
its focus on renewable energy through its subsidiaries, further expanding its operational reach and commitment
to sustainable energy solutions.

SWOT ANALYSIS:

Strengths

e Proven capabilities in undertaking operation and maintenance of any type of power plants using coal, gas,
liquid fuel etc. and any technology such as PF, FBC etc.

e Core technical capabilities in resolving any complex O&M issues

e Committed and agile teams with deep sector experience and domain experience

e Thorough knowledge in various operational requirements of captive power plants of various industries such
as steel, cement, paper, smelter etc.
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Weaknesses

e Dependence on thermal power plant industry exposes the company to all the concerns/issues faced by the
power plant owners

e O&M contracts could not be renewed with price escalations due to intense competition; however the labour
cost is increasing due to the constant revision of minimum wages by the Government.

Opportunities

e Stressed power plants managed by Asset Reconstruction Companies present an opportunity to work them as
ARCs are mostly financial investors

e Anticipated demand growth spurred by economic growth as well as Government reforms such as UDAY,
SAUBHAGYA and DDUGJY.

Threats

e Increasing preference globally and in India for renewable power, especially Solar power could constrain growth
prospects for thermal power generation in the long run

e Competition from start-ups whose quotes are much lower

e Increasing labour costs

SEGMENT -WISE OR PRODUCT -WISE PERFORMANCE:

OEG PROJECTS LIST FOR 2023-24

OEG - DOMESTIC PROJECTS ‘ 31st March 2024 ‘ 31st March 2023

Sl No of No of No of .

No. Type of Plants Plants Plants Plants in MW

1 Thermal Projects (TPP) 28 5271.35 27 5229.35

2 Diesel Generators (DGPP) 1 6.0 0 0.0

3 Combined Cycle Power Plants (CCPP) 1 52.8 1 52.8

4 Solar PV Power Plants (SPVPP) 2 60 2 60
OVERSEAS PROJECTS 31st March

Sl. No of . No of .

No. Type of Plants Plants in MW Plants in MW

1 Thermal Projects (TPP) 1 16 0 0

2 Diesel Generators (DGPP) 0 0 0 0

3 Combined Cycle Power Plants (CCPP) 3 498 3 498

4 Solar PV Power Plants (SPVPP) 0 0 0 0

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has a sound system of Internal Audit, risk assessment and mitigation and has an independent Internal
Audit Department headed by an independent chartered accountant with well-established internal control and risk
management processes both at the site and corporate levels. The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which ensures independence of audit function. Internal Audit
function plays a key role in providing to both the operating management and to the Audit Committee of the Board,
an objective view and reassurance of the overall control systems and effectiveness of the Risk Management
processes across the Company and its subsidiaries. Internal Audit also assesses opportunities for improvement in
business processes, systems and controls and provides recommendations designed to add value to the operations.
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The internal audit department operates on a continuous basis in monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control environment across the Company and the status of compliance with operating systems, internal

policies and regulatory requirements.

The Audit Committee meets on a quarterly basis to review and discuss the reports submitted by the Internal Auditor
and review closure of all agreed actions. The Audit Committee also meets the Statutory Auditors separately to
ascertain their views on the adequacy, efficacy and efficiency of the internal control systems

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

The consolidated net revenue from operations saw a
significant increase of 19.48%, rising from Rs.
26,345.13 lakhs to Rs. 31,479.05 lakhs.

EBITDA

2,173.10
1,553.03
2023-24 2022-23

Profit before tax climbed to Rs. 2,037.09 lakhs,
compared to Rs. 1,253.42 lakhs in the previous year,
demonstrating the company's ability to manage costs
and improve margins.

Profit After Tax

858

2022-23

2023-24

6l|Page

Revenue from Operations

26345

2022-23

2023-24

This growth reflects the company's strong
performance over the past year. Earnings before
interest, depreciation, tax, and amortization
(EBITDA) also showed a notable increase, reaching
Rs. 2,173.10 lakhs, up from Rs. 1,553.03 lakhs the

previous vyear. This improvement in EBITDA
indicates enhanced operational efficiency and
profitability.

Profit Before Tax

1253

2022-23

2023-24

Profit after tax saw a remarkable jump to Rs.
1,661.88 lakhs from Rs. 857.92 lakhs, highlighting
the overall financial health and growth of the
company.
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Despite these positive financial outcomes, the company continues to face challenges in acquiring new operations
and maintenance (O&M) contracts and renewing existing ones, primarily due to subdued demand in the power
industry. Additionally, competition from localized players presents a significant challenge. In response, the company
has implemented active measures to reduce its operational costs, aiming to maintain competitiveness and sustain
profitability in a challenging market environment.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS ANALYSIS:

Particulars 2023-24

2022-23

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 34.97 6.43
Current Ratio 1.62 1.62
Inventory Turnover Ratio 29.31 43.73
Debt Equity Ratio 1.11 1.03
Net Profit Ratio 0.05 0.03
Return on Equity Ratio 0.22 0.19

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF
PEOPLE EMPLOYED:

Operational Energy Group India Limited recognized that key assets to its growth is human resources. Human
Resources department focuses on development of performance related cultures thus paving way for long term
business growth to live up to the aspirations of stakeholders.

Your company has invested in a state of art training Centre “OPTRA” for skills development in O & M operations as
a part of strategy to enhance the employee’s productivity and skills.

The company has taken steps to develop a very strong HR Process and strategy to improve the overall organizational
effectiveness and has a performance appraisal system in place. A continuous review of the monitoring process is
undertaken.

Focus on right manpower in overseas operations to spread organizations global footprint is the prime aim of the
company. The company had a total of 2585 workforce in March 2024.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statement in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the company objectives, projections,
estimates and expectations may be “forward looking” within the ambit of applicable laws and regulations.

Actual results, performance and achievements might differ substantially or materially from those expressed or
implied. The company’s performance could be affected by global and domestic supply and demand conditions,
changes in government regulations tax laws economic development within the country and other factors such as
litigation and industrial relations.

Place: Chennai For and on behalf of the Board
Date: 09.08.2024

S. Ramesh
Executive Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00052842
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON THE CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

Corporate Governance is all about maintaining the harmonious balance between economic growth, social
responsibility, individual interests and community goals. At Operational Energy Group India Limited (OEGIL), we
believe in fostering business culture through the implementation of exemplary corporate governance practices.
Our governance approach is rooted in the principles of trusteeship, transparency, and comprehensive disclosure,
ensuring adherence to high standards of corporate conduct and accountability.

OEGIL is committed to continually upgrading its management practices to achieve ideal corporate governance and
has set itself the objective of achieving excellence in its business endeavors. Our governance framework is
thoughtfully designed to align with the composition and size of our Board, ensuring effective oversight and
strategic direction.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V
and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), as amended from time
to time and as applicable, with regard to Corporate Governance issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from time to time.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Company has a judicious combination of Executive and Non- Executive Directors as on March 31, 2024, which
is in compliance with the Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013. The Board comprises of 4 Directors out of
which one is an Executive Director and two are Independent Directors and one is Non-Executive Woman Director.
Board of Directors meet at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business strategies/policies and review the
financial performance of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Board members possess requisite skills, experience
and expertise that are required to take decisions which are in the best interest of the Company. Board meetings
are generally chaired by Mr. S. Ramesh, who is an Executive Director and the Managing Director of the company.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

All statutory and other significant material information is placed before the Board of Directors to enable it to
discharge its responsibility of superintendence, control and direction of management of strategic and day-to-day
affairs of the Company. The Meetings of the Board are regularly held at the Registered Office. There is constant
endeavor to improve the practices with regard to the Board Meetings. The agenda and the relevant papers are
circulated in advance to facilitate the members of the Board to take informed decisions and discharge their
responsibility effectively. The Board Meetings (including Committee Meetings) of the Company are scheduled well
in advance to facilitate Directors to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful participation in the meetings.
However, in case of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s approval is taken by passing resolution(s) by
circulation, as permitted by law, which is noted in the subsequent Board Meeting. In special and exceptional
circumstances, consideration of additional or supplementary items is taken up with the approval of the Chair of
Independent Directors present at the Meeting.

During the financial year 2023-24, 6 (Six) Board meetings were held on 02" May 2023, 27" May 2023, 10" August
2023, 12" October 2023, 10" November 2023 and 12% February 2024. Resolution was passed by the board of
directors by circulation which was circulated on 9™ December 2023 which was taken note in the meeting held on
12 February 2024.

63|Page
Annual Report 2023-24




OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

COMPOSITION, DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AND OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS HELD:

Number of

Whether . .. Number of Committee
Number directorships in o :
Attended . positions held in other
of Board other public S
) AGM .. public limited
. Category of Meeting limited .
Name of the Director ) Held on . Companies
the Director  attended 14" Companies
during the Chair Board Chairman .
Septemb Committee
year ofthe Memb of the
er 2023 . Member
Board er Committee
Mr. S. Ramesh Executive 06 Yes - - - -
DIN: 00052842 Chairman
&
Managing
Director
Mrs. Usha Ramesh Non- 06 Yes - - - -
DIN: 00053451 Executive
Director
Mr. P. Swaminathan Independent 06 Yes - - - -
DIN: 02603984 Director
Mr. N.S.R. Ganesh Babu Independent 06 Yes - - - -
DIN: 06846188 Director

# Directorships held in private companies, foreign companies and companies registered under section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are excluded.

a. SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2024 IS AS UNDER:
No of Ordinary % of Paid-Up

Name of the Directo Category of the Director

rector gory Iree Shares Held Capital
Mr. S. Ramesh Executive Chairman & Managing Director 5,081,800 38.97
Mrs. Usha Ramesh Non-Executive Director 9,25,200 7.09

b. No other Director holds any shares in the Company. The Company has not issued any convertible instruments.

¢. None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5
Committees across all the public companies in which he/she is a Director. All the Directors have made the
requisite disclosures regarding committee positions held by them in other companies.

d. None of the Directors hold directorships in any other listed companies.

e. None of the Directors of the Company is related to each other except the woman director who is related to
the Executive Chairman and Managing director.

f. The Details of familiarization programs conducted for the independent directors are disclosed in website of
the Company at www.oegglobal.com
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g. Skills/expertise/competencies of the board of directors for the effective functioning of the company which are
currently available with the board:

As required under the Listing Regulations, the list of core skills/expertise/competencies as identified by the Board
of Directors in the context of its business and sector for it to function effectively and those available with the

Board are as under:

Knowledge

Behavioral Skills

Strategic thinking

and Planning
Leadership

Financial Discipline
and Risk Oversight

Corporate
Governance

The Board of the Company

Understanding of the Company’s business, policies and culture (including its mission,
vision, values, goals, current strategic plan, governance structure, major risks and
threats and potential opportunities) and knowledge of the industry in which the
Company operates.

Attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to function well as team
members and to interact with key stakeholders.

Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices, and experience in guiding and
leading management teams to make decisions in uncertain environments.

Leadership Skill to ensure effective guidance to and monitoring of the management and
to set a corporate culture and the values by which executives throughout the group
should behave.

Understanding of Financial Management, Financial Reporting Process and Financial
&Operational controls. Ensuring focus on returns. Understand and oversee internal and
external risks associated with the Business and to put in place appropriate policies and
procedures to effectively manage such risks.

Experience in implementation of the statutory laws, rules, regulations etc. for effective
Governance implementation and ensuring proper corporate governance.

is highly structured to ensure a high degree of diversity by age,

education/qualifications, professional background, sector expertise and special skills.

Matrix of skills/expertise/competencies of Directors of the Company who possess the above referred
skills/expertise/competencies are as given below:

Director Knowledge | Behavioral | Strategic Leadership Financial Corporate
Skills thinking Discipline Governance
and and Risk
Planning Oversight
Mr. S. Ramesh v v v v v v
DIN: 00052842
Mrs. Usha Ramesh v v v v v
DIN: 00053451 v
Mr. P. Swaminathan v v v v v
DIN: 02603984 v
Mr. N.S.R. Ganesh | ¥ N4 v v v v
Babu
DIN: 06846188
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h. Confirmation about Independent Directors in the opinion of the Board:

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 along with rules framed thereunder. In terms
of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance
or situation which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge
their duties. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has
confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence with an objective independent judgment and without
any external influence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and that they are
independent of the management. In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they
have enrolled themselves in the Independent Directors’ Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs.

No Independent Director resigned during the Financial Year 2023-24. However, Mr. N.S.R.Ganesh Babu (DIN:
06846188) was reappointed in for three (3) Consecutive years i.e from 16 September 2023 to 15 September
2026 in the second term upon the completion of First term.

BOARD PROCEDURES

a. The agenda is circulated well in advance to the Board members taking into account the requirements of the
Companies Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

b. The item in the agenda is determined with full communication at responsible levels to enable the Board to take
appropriate decisions and to discharge its responsibilities effectively.

C. The Managing Director and CFO apprise the Board on the overall performance of the Company.

d. The Company Secretary is responsible for the preparation of the agenda and convening of the Board and
Committee meetings. The Company Secretary attends all the meetings of the Board and its Committees, advises/
assures the Board on Compliance and Governance principles and ensures appropriate recording of minutes of
the meetings.

e. The Board provides strategic direction in improving the performance of the Company. Quarterly results, minutes
of the sub-committees & subsidiary, general notices of interest received from directors, annual budgets, legal
compliance report, authorizations for various business purposes are also placed and reviewed by the Board.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of directors of the Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for the Directors and senior Management
Personnel of the Company. The Code is available on the website of the Company at https://oegglobal.com/investor-
relations/. All the Directors and senior managerial Personnel have re-affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct
on March 31, 2024. A declaration to this effect signed by the Executive Chairman & Managing Director forms part
of this report.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

With a view to have a more focused attention on the business and for better governance and accountability the
Board of Directors have constituted Board Committees to deal with specific areas and activities which concern the
Company and requires a closer review. The Board Committees are formed with approval of the Board and function
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under their respective Charters. All decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committees, appointment of
members and fixing of terms of reference for the Committee are taken by the Board of Directors. The Committees
make specific recommendations to the Board on various matters whenever required. All observations,
recommendations and decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board for information or for approval.
The Board currently has the following Committees:

i. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is entrusted with the responsibility of supervising the Company’s
internal controls and financial reporting process. All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate
and have adequate accounting and financial experience. The committee comprises of two independent directors
and the Executive Chairman & Managing Director of the company. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an
Independent Director.

Brief description of terms of reference:

The terms of Reference of Audit Committee cover the matters specified for Audit Committee under Regulation 18
of the SEBI Listing Regulations as well as in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The role of Audit Committee
is as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The Audit Committee inter alia performs
the functions of approving Annual Internal Audit Plan, review of financial reporting system, internal controls system,
discussion and recommendation of financial results, interaction with Statutory and Internal Auditors, appointment
of Statutory Auditors and their remuneration, recommendation for the appointment and remuneration of Internal
Auditors, review of Internal Audit Reports and significant related party transactions. In fulfilling the above role, the
Audit Committee has powers to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, to seek information from
employees and to obtain outside legal and professional advice.

The Audit Committee also oversees and reviews the functioning of a vigil mechanism and reviews the findings of
investigation into cases of material nature and the actions taken in respect thereof.

Composition, Names of Members and Chairman

Name of the Member ‘ Category

Mr.N.S.R. Ganesh Babu (Chairman) Independent Director
Mr. P. Swaminathan Independent Director
Mr. S. Ramesh Executive Chairman & Managing Director

Meetings and the attendance during the year

Five Meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year. The attendance and other details of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

Attendance of Attendance of Attendance of

Mr. N.S.R. Ganesh Babu Mr. P. Swaminathan Mr. S. Ramesh
1 02-05-2023 Yes Yes Yes
2 27-05-2023 Yes Yes Yes
3 10-08-2023 Yes Yes Yes
4 10-11-2023 Yes Yes Yes
5 12-02-2024 Yes Yes Yes
Total 5 5 5
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ii. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC):
Brief description of terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in accordance with Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as prescribed under part D of
Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations. The Committee was constituted to determine and recommend payment of
remuneration to executive directors. The Committee shall also identify the persons, reviewing the overall
compensation policy, service agreements and other employment conditions of Managing/Whole-time Director(s)
and Senior Management (one level below the Board of Directors), who are qualified to become directors of the
Company and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to
recommend to the Board their appointment/ removal and to carry out evaluation of directors’ performance and
perform such other functions as may be necessary.

Composition, Names of Members and Chairman

Name of the Member Category

Mr. N.S.R. Ganesh Babu (Chairman) Independent Director
Mr. P. Swaminathan Independent Director
Mrs. Usha Ramesh Non — Executive Director

Meetings and the attendance during the year

2(Two) Meetings were held during the yeari.e 27 May 2023 and 10 August 2023 of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee during the year 2023-24.

SI. No. | Date Attendance of Attendance of Attendance of
Mr. N.S.R. Ganesh Mr. P. Swaminathan Mrs. Usha Ramesh
Babu
1 30/05/2023 Yes Yes Yes
2 10/08/2023 Yes Yes Yes
Total 2 2 2

REMUNERATION POLICY
A. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors are paid by way of Sitting Fees. The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for
each Meeting of the Board or Committee of Directors attended by them. The Non-Executive Director/ Independent
Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

B. Remuneration to Executive Director

The appointment and remuneration of Executive Chairman & Managing Director is governed by the
recommendation of the Remuneration & Nomination Committee, the remuneration package of Executive Chairman
& Managing Director comprises of salary, perquisites and allowances, and contributions to Provident and other
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Retirement Benefit Funds as approved by the shareholders at the General Meetings. Annual increments are linked
to performance and are decided by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee and recommended to the Board
for approval thereof.

The remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance, based on review of achievements. It is aimed
at attracting and retaining high caliber talent. Presently, the Company does not have a stock options scheme for its
directors.

The remuneration policy of the Company is available at the website of the Company at www.oegglobal.com

Performance evaluation for Independent Directors

The Criteria for evaluation of the performance of Independent Directors includes their qualification, experience,
competency, knowledge, understanding of respective roles (as Independent Director and as a member of the
Committees of which they are Members/Chairpersons), adherence to Codes and ethics, conduct, attendance and
participation in the meetings etc.

The Directors including Independent Directors (without the participation of the Executive Director) and the
Chairman was held on 12/02/2024. The Independent Directors have expressed their satisfaction on the
performance and effectiveness of the Board.

The Board has also expressed satisfaction at the performance and contributions of the Independent Directors and
confirmed the continuance of their terms of appointment for effective board deliberations as required by Schedule
IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

iii. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
Brief description of terms of reference:

In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. The Board

has constituted the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

a. To monitor the work relating to transfer, transmission, dematerialization, sub-division / consolidation of
share

b. Toissue duplicate share certificates and

c. To ensure that all the investors’ grievances and complaints are redressed expeditiously to strengthen the
investors’ relations.

Composition, Names of Members and Chairman

Name of the Member Category \
Mr. P. Swaminathan — Chairman Independent Director

Mr. S. Ramesh Executive Chairman & Managing Director

Mrs. Usha Ramesh Non — Executive Director

Meetings and the attendance during the year

One Meeting of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee was held during the year. The attendance and other
details of the Committee are as follows:
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Attendance of Attendance of Attendance of
Mr. P. Swaminathan Mr. S. Ramesh Mrs. Usha Ramesh

1. 12/02/2024 Yes Yes Yes
Total 1 1 1

e The status of Investor Complaints as on 31.03.2024 are as under:

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - Nil
No. of complaints received during the year - Nil
No. of complaints redressed during the year - Nil
No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - Nil

iv. SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE:
Brief description of terms of reference:

In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the Board
has constituted Share Transfer Committee to oversee the requests of share transfer, transmissions, transpositions
etc., which are approved by the committee and then are processed by the RTA and returned within the stipulated
time, if the documents are found to be in order.

Composition, Names of Members and Chairman

Name of the Member Category

Mr. S. Ramesh — Chairman Executive Chairman & Managing Director
Mrs. Usha Ramesh Non — Executive Director

Meetings and the attendance during the year

One Meeting of the Share Transfer Committee was held during the year. The attendance and other details of the
Committee are as follows:

Attendance of Attendance of

Mr. S. Ramesh Mrs. Usha Ramesh
1. 12/02/2024 Yes Yes
Total 1 1

v. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:
Brief description of terms of reference:

As per provisions of Section 135(1) of the companies Act, 2013, the Board has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee with combination of Independent Director to review the existing CSR policy and to make
it more comprehensive so as to indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII
of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Composition, Names of Members and Chairman

Name of the Member \ Category

Mr. S. Ramesh Executive Chairman & Managing Director
Mrs. Usha Ramesh Non — Executive Director
Mr. P. Swaminathan - Chairman Independent and Non — Executive Director

Meetings and the attendance during the year
One Meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was held during the year. The attendance and other
details of the Committee are as follows:

Sl. No. Date Attendance of Attendance of Attendance of

Mr. S. Ramesh Mrs. Usha Ramesh Mr. P. Swaminathan
1. 27/05/2023 Yes Yes Yes
Total 1 1 1

vi. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (RMC):
Brief description of terms of reference:

Although it is non-mandatory for the company to have a risk management committee, the Board as a good
governance practice has set up this committee in Compliance with Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations. Business
Risk Evaluation, management and mitigation is an ongoing process within the Organization. The Company has a
robust risk management framework to identify, monitor and minimize risks and also identify business opportunities
which is periodically reviewed by the Committee.

Composition, Names of Members and Chairman

Name of the Member Category

Mr. S. Ramesh — Chairman Executive Chairman & Managing Director
Mr. P. Swaminathan Independent and Non — Executive Director
Mr. S.V. Natarajan Chief Financial Officer

Meetings and the attendance during the year

Two Meeting of the Risk Management Committee was held during the year. The attendance and other details of the
Committee are as follows:

Sl. No. Date Attendance of Attendance of Attendance of
Mr. S. Ramesh Mr. S.V. Natarajan Mr. P. Swaminathan
1. 10/11/2023 Yes Yes Yes
2. 12/02/2024 Yes Yes Yes
Total 2 2 2
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Vii.VIGIL MECHANISM COMMITTEE:
Brief description of terms of reference:

In compliance with Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, the
Board has constituted the Vigil Mechanism Committee. The Board of Directors of the Company have formulated
and adopted Whistle Blower Policy which aims to provide a channel to the Stake holders (including directors and
employees) to report unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct.
The mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors and employees to avail the
mechanism and direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

Your company hereby affirms that no Director/employee has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and that no complaints were received during the year.

Composition, Names of Members and Chairman

Name of the Member Category

Mr. P. Swaminathan Independent Director
Mr. S. Ramesh — Chairman Executive Chairman & Managing Director

Meetings and the attendance during the year

One Meeting of the Vigil Mechanism Committee was held during the year. The attendance and other details of the
Committee are as follows:

Sl. No. Date Attendance of Attendance of
Mr. S. Ramesh Mr. P. Swaminathan

1. 12/02/2024 Yes Yes

Total 1 1

4. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR:

Name of the Director Salary & Special Performance Sitting Fee Total
Perquisites = Allowance Pay (Rs) Remuneration

(Rs) Paid/ (Rs) (Rs)
Payable (Rs)

Mr. S. Ramesh - Executive

Chairman & Managing Director | 1,67,60,800 - - - 1,67,60,800
Mrs. Usha Ramesh — Non-
Executive Director - - - 60,000 60,000
Mr. N.S.R. Ganesh Babu —
Independent Director - - - 70,000 70,000

Mr. P. Swaminathan —
Independent Director - - - - -

The Non — Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board.
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Mr. S. Ramesh, Executive Chairman & Managing Director is under contract employment with the Company which
stipulates a notice period of six month from either side for early separation. No severance fee is payable to Executive
Directors.

There was no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive Director vis-a-vis the Company. The criteria
for making payment to the Non-executive Directors is disclosed on the website of the Company at
www.oegglobal.com.

The Company does not have a scheme for granting stock options either to the Directors or to its employees.

5. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

Regulation 16 (1) (c) of the Listing Regulations defines a ‘material subsidiary’ as subsidiary, whose income or net
worth exceeds 10% of the consolidated income or net worth respectively, of the listed entity and its subsidiaries in
the immediately preceding accounting year. Accordingly, Operational Energy Generation, FZCO which is a subsidiary
of Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited, is a material subsidiary of the Company.

The subsidiary of the Company functions independently, with an adequately empowered Board of Directors and
sufficient resources. For more effective governance, the Minutes of Board Meetings of subsidiaries are placed before
the Board of the Company for its review on quarterly basis and a statement of all significant transactions and
arrangements entered into by the subsidiary companies are also placed before the Board.

Pursuant to the explanation under Regulation 16 (1) (c) of the Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a
policy for determining material subsidiaries which is disclosed on the Company’s website at www.oegglobal.com.

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

Location, day, date and time of Annual General Meetings held during the last 3 year are given as below:

Location

Day, Date and Time  Special Resolutions Passed

Financial
Year

2023-24 Held through Video Thursday, 14 Re-appointment of Mr N.S.R. Ganesh
Conference September 2023 at | Babu as the Independent Director of the
11.00 A.M Company in the second term for the
tenure of Three consecutive vyears
starting from 16-September 2023 to 15
September 2026
2022-23 Held through Video Tuesday, 13th Appointment of Mr. N.S.R. Ganesh Babu
Conference September 2022 at | as the Independent Director of the
11.00 A.M. Company Re-appointment of Mr. S.
Ramesh as executive Director and
Managing Director for a term of 3 years
2021-22 Held through Video Thursday, 16 Re-appointment of Mr. P. Swaminathan
Conference September 2021 at | and Mr. B. Viswanathan as Independent
11.00 A.M Director. To pay commission to Mr. S.
Ramesh
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7. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

The Share Capital Audit was conducted by a Practicing Company Secretary, reconciling the issued and listed capital
of the Company. The audit confirms that the total paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares
in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Quarterly Results: As stipulated under Regulation 33 read with Regulation 47, the Quarterly Results are intimated
to the Stock Exchanges within forty-five days of the close of the quarter. The audited annual results are announced
within sixty days from the closure of the financial year ended 31st March 2024. The results are published in one
English Newspaper in ‘Trinity Mirror’ and in vernacular language, i.e., Tamil Newspaper ‘Makkal Kural’. The results
are also displayed in the website of the company at www.oegglobal.com

Official News Releases: Official News Releases are sent to stock exchanges.

Presentation made to institutional investors/analysts: During the year no presentations has been made to
institutional investors/analysts.

Website: The Company’s website (www.oegglobal.com) contains a separate dedicated section where shareholders
information is available.

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION ON ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Date and Time Thursday 12" September 2024 at 09.00 A.M
Deemed Venue as per Companies Act A, 5" Floor Gokul Arcade — East Wing, No. 2 & 2A Sardar Patel Road,
Adyar, Chennai— 600 020

Financial Year 01.04.2023 - 31.03.2024
Dividend payment date Not Applicable
Listing Details Metropolitan Stock Exchange India Limited

4™ Floor, Vibgyor Tower, Plot No. C-62, OPP Trident Hotel, BKC,
Bandra East Mumbai — 400 098

Stock Code OEGIL

ISIN INE239V01012 (Listed Shares: 1,30,41,800

Corporate Identification Number (CIN) L40100TN1994PLC028309
Address for Correspondence A, 5" Floor Gokul Arcade — East Wing, No. 2 & 2A Sardar Patel Road,
Adyar, Chennai— 600 020

10. PAYMENT OF LISTING FEE

The Company's Securities are listed with MSE Ltd. Annual Listing Fees for the year 2023-24 has been paid by the
Company to Metropolitan Stock Exchange.
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OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

11.MARKET PRICE DATA & SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE:

MSEI
High (In. Rs)  Low (In Rs.) Volume
(No. of shares traded)
April 2023 — August, 2023 25.70 25.70 -
September, 2023 25.70 25.70 -
October 2023 — March 2024 25.70 25.70 -

12.REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT:

All share registry work in respect of both physical and demat segments are handled by a single common agency M/s
Cameo Corporate Services Limited situated at Subramanian Building, No.1, Club House Road, Chennai — 600 002,
who are the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company for all aspects of investor servicing relating to
the shares.

13.DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

Number of Shares Number of Shareholders
Range of Holdings Number \ % to total Number % to total
1 to 500 1,00,200 0.76 333 66.071
501 to 1000 82,300 0.63 90 17.86
1001 to 2000 46,700 0.36 30 5.95
2001 to 3000 66,100 0.51 27 5.35
3001 to 4000 17,400 0.13 5 0.99
4001 to 5000 4,300 0.03 1 0.20
5001 to 10000 8,600 0.07 1 0.20
10001 and above 1,27,16,200 97.50 17 3.37
Total 1,30,41,800 100.00 504 100.00

14.CATEGORY WISE SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

SI. No. Category No. of Shares % of Holding

1. Resident 31,22,900 23.96
2. NRI — Repatriable 14,91,800 11.44
3. NRI — Non Repatriable 57,900 0.44
4. Corporate Body 26,58,600 20.38
5. Promoter — Indian 56,98,100 43.69
6. Promoter — NRI (Repatriable) 12,500 0.09
Total 13,041,800 100
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15.DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES:

The Company’s shares are available for trading in both National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the
Company is INE239V01012.

Sl. No. Particulars No. of Shares Percentage

1. CDSL 11159660 85.57
2. NSDL 15700 0.12
3. Physical 1866440 14.31

Total 13401800 100

16.THE COMPANY HAD NOT ISSUED ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS
17.DIVIDEND DECLARED FOR THE PAST TEN YEARS AND UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS:

No dividend has been declared by the Company in the last ten years. Therefore, there are no unclaimed or unpaid
dividends.

18.SEBI COMPLAINTS REDRESSAL SYSTEM (SCORES):

SEBI administers a centralised web-based complaints redress system (“SCORES”). It enables investors to lodge and
follow up complaints and track the status of redressal online on the website at https://scores.gov.in. It also enables
the market intermediaries and listed companies to receive the complaints from investors against them, redress
such complaints and report redressal of such complaints. All the activities starting from lodging of a complaint till
its disposal are carried online in an automated environment and the status of every complaint can be viewed
online at any time. The Company has registered itself on SCORES and endeavors to resolve all investor complaints
received through SCORES.

No Shareholders’ complaint has been received through SCORES during the year.
19.CREDIT RATING DURING THE YEAR:

The Company has obtained the credit rating from Care Ratings. The credit rating obtained by the Company was
BBB+ for long-term facilities and A3+ for short-term facilities for the year.

20.CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

In accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the company has
instituted a Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by its employees and other connected
persons for prohibition of insider trading in the Company’s shares. The code endeavors to preserve confidentiality
on unpublished price sensitive information and to prevent the misuse of such information. The policy is also posted
on the website of the Company.

21.FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES:

The Company is primarily engaged in the service industry and hence is not subject to commaodity price risk. There
were no foreign exchange risks/ hedging activities during the year 2023-24.
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22.COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

Name : Ms. Ramya Sachin Inamdar

Designation : Company Secretary

Address for correspondence : Operational Energy Group India Limited,
A, 5" Floor Gokul Arcade No.2 & 2A, Sardar Patel Road,
Adyar Chennai— 600 020.

23. OTHER DISCLOSURES:
a. There were no materially significant related party transactions that had potential conflict with the interests of

the Company at large. Transactions in the ordinary course of business with the related parties are disclosed in
the Notes to Financial Statements.

b. The Company has complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities and no penalties / strictures
were imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI, or any Statutory Authority on any matter
related to capital Markets, during the last three years.

c. The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy and has not denied access to any
personnel to approach the Management or the Audit Committee on any issue.

d. Details of compliance with Mandatory Requirements:

Code of Conduct: The Company has laid down procedure to be followed by Member of the Board and Senior
Management Personnel for ethical professional conduct. The members of the Board and Management Personnel
affirmed that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for the financial year 2023-24.

CFO & MD Certification: The CFO & MD Certification of the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for
the year under review forms part of Annual Report.

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary: A Certificate from Practicing Company secretary confirming
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
forms part of this Report.

e. The internal auditor of the Company directly submits his report to the Audit Committee every quarter.

f. The Company has duly complied with the requirements of Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.

g. In terms of the amendments made to the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors confirms that during the
year, it has accepted all recommendations received from its mandatory committees.

24. THE DETAILS OF ADOPTION OF DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS AS STIPULATED IN PART E OF SCHEDULE Il ARE
AS FOLLOWS:

a) The Company does not have non-executive Chairman.
b) There have been no modified opinions on the financial statements.
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CONFIRMATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT

I, S. Ramesh, Executive Chairman & Managing Director of Operational Energy Group India Limited, hereby declare
that all the members of the Board of Directors and the Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct, applicable to them as laid down by the Board of Directors, in terms of Regulation 26(3)
of the Listing Regulations for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Place: Chennai for Operational Energy group India limited
Date: 09-08-2024

S. Ramesh
DIN: 00052842
Executive Chairman & Managing Director
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CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

We, S.V. Natarajan, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. S. Ramesh, Executive Chairman & Managing Director of Operational
Energy Group India Limited to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

a. We have reviewed financial statements, cash flow and equity statement, for the year and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

e These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading.

e these statements present a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results of
operations and cash flows. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with Ind AS in all material
respects and the applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

c. We accept overall responsibility for establishing and monitoring the Company’s internal control system for
financial reporting and evaluating its effectiveness. Internal Audit function monitors the internal control system for
financial reporting, which encompasses the examination and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness Internal
Audit works with all levels of management and Statutory Auditors and reports significant issues to the Audit
Committee of the Board. The Statutory Auditors and Audit Committee are apprised of any corrective action taken or
proposed to be taken with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee.

that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year.

that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year.

that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware of and which involve management
or other employees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

wnNeE o

Place: Chennai S.V. Natarajan S. Ramesh
Date: 28.05.2024 Chief Financial Officer Executive Chairman & Managing Director
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To, The Members,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Operational Energy Group India Limited
(“the Company”), for the year ended on March 31, 2024, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of
regulation 46(2) and para—C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI Listing Regulations”).

Management’s Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with
the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Auditors’ Responsibility

e Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company
for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

e We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company
for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by
the Company.

e We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the
ICAl), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable
for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued
by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

e We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality
Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and
Related Services Engagements.

Opinion
1.p Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information explanations provided to us
and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and
D of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations during the year ended 31 March, 2024.
2. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Chartered Accounts
FRN: 002510S

Place: Chennai

Date: 09.08.2024 G. Vivekanathan
Partner

Membership No: 028339
UDIN:24028339BKHHXJ5593

80|Page
Annual Report 2023-24




OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI(Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members,

Operational Energy Group India Limited
(L40100TN1994PLC028309)

A, 5th Floor, Gokul Arcade —East Wing,
No.2 & 2A, Sardar Patel Road,

Adyar, Chennai- 600 020.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
Operational Energy Group India Limited having CIN L40100TN1994PLC028309 and having registered office at A, 5th
Floor, Gokul Arcade —East Wing,No.2 & 2A, Sardar Patel Road, Adyar, Chennai- 600 020 (hereinafter referred to as
‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by
the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated
below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed
or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
or any such other Statutory Authority:

Sr. No | Name of Director Designation DIN
1 Subramanyam Ramesh Executive Chairman & Managing director 00052842
2 Ramesh Usha Non- Executive Director 00053451
3 Ganesh Babu Independent Director 06846188
4 Panchapagesan Swaminathan Independent Director 02603984

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Chennai (V.K. SHANKARARAMANN)
Date: 16.04.2024 Practicing Company Secretary
QR Code: 74

ACS/ FCS No.:5592

CP No.:5255

UDIN: F005592F000147118
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
The Members of Operational Energy Group India Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Operational Energy Group India Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31°' March 2024, the statement of profit and loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAIl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW IT WAS ADDRESSED DURING AUDIT

Recognition of revenue is complex due to several | We have tested the relevant internal controls used to
types of customer contracts including Operation and | ensure the completeness, accuracy and timing of
maintenance contracts of power plants and process | revenue recognition, including controls over the decree
plants. of completion of service contracts.
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Information Other Than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’s Report including Annexures to Director’s Report, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Business Responsibility Report and Report on Corporate Governance but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which are expected to be made available to us after the date
of this Auditor’s Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the report and other information as stated above, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
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considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We are also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
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about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A”
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from Directors as on 31 March 2024 taken on record,
by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 315 March, 2024 from being appointed as
Director in terms of clauses referred to section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

g) In our opinion and according information and explanations given to us, the company has paid \ provided
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V of the companies Act, 2013.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i.The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements.

ii.The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company. Hence the reporting delay in depositing dues does not arise.

iv.(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
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entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and accordingly reporting on the
compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable for the year under consideration.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course
of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 002510S

G.Vivekananthan

Partner
Membership No: 028339
UDIN: 24028339BKHHXE7201

Place: Chennai
Date: 28/05/2024.
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ANNEXURE- A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date to
the members of Operational Energy Group India Limited on the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2024).

(i) (a) On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations
given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

(A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets;

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which
all Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(d)The company has not re valued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the year .

(e)According to information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, there are no proceedings initiated
or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us physical verification of inventory
except goods in transit and goods held by outsiders on behalf of the company has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management. In our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate and discrepancies noticed were not in excess of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of
inventory.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed
by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the
Company.

(iii) (a) During the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood
guarantee, or provided security to other entities.

(A) The aggregate amount during the year and the balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect
to such loans or advances and guarantees, or security to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are:
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(X in Lakhs)
Subsidiaries, joint ventures and Advances in
. Guarantees
associates nature of loans
Aggregate amount granted/ ) )
provided during the year 550.00 Nil 340.60 Nil
Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in respect of above | 550.00 Nil 865.73 Nil
cases:
(B) The aggregate amount during the year and the balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect

to such loans or advances and guarantees, or security to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are:

X in Lakhs)

Party other than subsidiaries, joint . Advances in

. Guarantees Security Loans
ventures and associates nature of loans
Aggregate amount granted/ _ _ )
provided during the year Nil Nil 131.00 Nil
Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in respect of above | pNj Nil 289.65 Nil
cases:

(b) The investments made are not prejudicial to the company’s interest. The company has not provided any
guarantee or given security. It has not granted advances in the nature of loans and guarantees. Loans granted are
not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments or receipts are regular. There are no advances in the nature of loans.

(d) There are no amounts overdue in respect of principal and interest;

(e) In respect of loan which has fallen due during the year no loan was renewed or extended or fresh loans granted
to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties. There are no advances in the nature of loans.

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand awithout
specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not grant any
loan, make any investment and give guarantees or security during the year which requires compliance under section
186 of the Companies Act. In respect of loans to parties covered under section 185, provisions of section 185 have
been complied with.

(v)  Inouropinionand according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits or amounts deemed to be deposits. Hence reporting under 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act for any
of the activities of the company and accordingly paragraph 3(vi) of the order is not applicable.
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(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, in our opinion,
the Company has been regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employee’s state insurance, Goods and ServicesTax, income- tax, and any other statutory
dues applicable to it. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination, there are no
transactions not recorded in the books of account, which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

(ix) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender

(b) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the company
has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

(c) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the term loans
have been applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained

(d) According to information and explanations given to us, the procedures performed by us and on the basis of our
overall examination of financial statements, prima facie no funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for
long term purposes

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the
company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its joint ventures or associate
companies.

(x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us , the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partially or optionally convertible debentures during
the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us by
the Company, no material fraud by the company or any fraud on the company by its officers and employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the
year and upto the date of this report.
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(c) As represented by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the company during
the year.

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable Accounting
Standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination the company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business;

(b) We have considered the Internal Audit reports of the company issued during the year and till date for the
purpose of audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Hence, provisions of clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination, the company has
not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities and accordingly provisions of clause 3(xvi)(b)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination, the company is
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence
provisions of clause 3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the Order, are not applicable to the Company

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our overall examination of the
financial statements, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xviii) is not applicable.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) The company has spent more than the amount required to be spent in pursuance of its corporate social
responsibility during the financial year. Hence provisions of clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 002510S

G.Vivekananthan

Partner
Membership No: 028339
UDIN: 24028339BKHHXE7201

Place: Chennai
Date: 28/05/2024
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date
to the members of Operational Energy Group India Limited on the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2024).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Section 143(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

92| Page
Annual Report 2023-24




OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the Company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 002510S

G.Vivekananthan
Partner
Membership No: 028339

UDIN: 24028339BKHHXE7201

Place: Chennai
Date:28/05/2024
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31-03-2024 - STANDALONE

Particulars Note As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
( Rs. in Lakhs) ( Rs. in Lakhs)
|. ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
a. Property, Plant & Equipment 2 899.29 822.37
b. Investment Property 3 20.46 29.25
c. Intangible Assets 4 1.84 1.84
d. Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 1,955.31 1,801.88
(ii) Loans and Advances 6 94.96 101.61
e. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 83.40 51.04
f. Other Non-Current Assets 8 342.46 196.88
(2) Current Assets
a. Inventories 9 488.93 455.66
b. Financial Assets
(i)Trade Receivables 10 3,413.52 3,978.70
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 4,856.32 2,802.55
(iii) Short Term Loans and Advances 12 2,572.46 2,122.70
c. Current Tax Assets 13 344.14 261.03
TOTAL 15,073.09 12,625.51
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
a. Equity Share Capital 14 1,304.18 1,304.18
b. Other Equity 15 6,224.60 4,858.09
(2) Non-Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Long Term Borrowings 16 57.13 12.20
b. Long Term Provisions 17 23.94 17.99
(3) Current Liabilities
a Financial Liabilities
(i) Short Term Borrowings 18 465.17 -
(ii) Trade Payables 19 1,973.11 1,242.48
b Other Current Liabilities 20 4,791.17 4,945.46
c Short Term Provisions 21 233.78 245.11
TOTAL 15,073.09 12,625.51
Significant Accounting Policies and other information
Note 1 to 30 form integral part of Financial Statement
As per our report of even date
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements
For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
. . .. Chartered Accountants
For Operational Energy Group India Limited FRN : 0025108
S.RAMESH N.S.R GANESH BABU G. VIVEKANANTHAN
Executive Chairman & Managing Director Independent Director Partner
DIN No: 00052842 DIN No : 06846188 Membership No:028339
UDIN:24028339BKHHXE7201
S V NATARAJAN RAMYA SACHIN INAMDAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Chennai
Date :28-05-2024
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-03-2024 - STANDALONE

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars Note 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Income ( Rs. in Lakhs) ( Rs. in Lakhs)
Revenue from Operations 22 28,648.82 25,185.90
Other Income 23 236.98 343.66
Total Revenue 28,885.80 25,529.56
Expenses
Cost of Materials /Services consumed 24 13,804.92 12,408.10
Changes in Inventories 25 - 33.27 |- 351.69
Employee Benefit Expenses 26 11,772.45 10,891.00
Finance Cost 27 56.16 194.54
Depreciation and Amotisation Expenses 28 72.28 94.75
Other Expenses 29 1,702.75 916.63
Total Expenses 27,375.29 24,153.33
Profit before Exceptional items and Tax 1,510.52 1,376.23
Exceptional Items
Profit after Exceptional items and Tax 1,510.52 1,376.23
Profit Before Tax 1,510.52 1,376.23
Tax Expenses
(1) Current Tax 338.00 302.70
(2) Deferred Tax -32.36 16.31
Profit (loss) for the period from continuing operations 1,204.88 1,057.22
Profit (loss) from discontinuing operations - -
Tax expense of Discontinuing operations - -
Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing operation - -
Profit/(Loss) For the period 1,204.88 1,057.22
Other Comprehensive Income
A i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Actuarial re measurements 23.24 63.26
Fair Value measurement of Financial instrument ( FVTOCI) 138.40 187.48
ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit
or Loss
B i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
ii) Income Tax relating to items that will reclassified to Profit or Loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income 161.64 250.74
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1,366.52 1,307.95
Earning Per equity Share of face value of Rs.10/- each
Basic & Diluted 30 10.48 10.03
Significant Accounting Policies and other information
Note 1 to 30 form integral part of Financial Statement
As per our report of even date
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements
For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
. .. Chartered Accountants
For Operational Energy Group India Limited ERN : 0025105
S.RAMESH N.S.R GANESH BABU G. VIVEKANANTHAN
Executive Chairman & Managing Director Independent Director Partner
DIN No: 00052842 DIN No : 06846188 Membership No:028339
UDIN:24028339BKHHXE7201
SV NATARAJAN RAMYA SACHIN INAMDAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Chennai
Date :28-05-2024
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT-STAND ALONE

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(Rs. in Lakhs ) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Annexure to Clause 32 of the listing Agreement
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
A.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before Tax 1,510.52 1,376.23
Less:- Provision for Taxation 338.00 302.70
Net Profit after Tax 1,172.52 1,073.53
Adjustments for
Depreciation 72.28 94.75
Other Comprehensive Income 161.64 250.74
Profit on sale of fixed assets - -
Interest/Dividend - -
Operating profit before working capital 1,406.44 1,419.01
(Increase)/Decrease in Sundry Debtors 565.18 -1,491.84
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories and other current assets -116.38 -306.39
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances -449.76 -211.58
Decrease in preoperation expenses -
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities 1,030.18 -151.61
SUB TOTAL 1,029.22 -2,161.42
Cash generated from Operating activities 2,435.66 -742.41
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets -140.41 -441.55
Sale of Fixed Assets -
Purchase/Sale of Investments -153.44 -487.52
Long term Loans and Advances -138.93 -28.69
Net cash generated/Used from/in Investing Activities -432.78 -957.76
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of share capital - -
Proceeds from long term borrowings (net) 50.89 -11.98
Proceeds from working capital Loan - -
Reapyment of finance lease liabilities - -
Dividend paid - -
Net cash generated/used in Financing activities 50.89 -11.98
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,053.77 -1,712.14
Cash and cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 2,802.55 4,514.69
Cash and cash Equivalents (Closing Balance) 4,856.32 2,802.55
For Operational Energy Group India Limited For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002510S
S.RAMESH N.S.R GANESH BABU G. VIVEKANANTHAN
E).<ecut|ve Chairman & Managing Independent Director . Partner
Director Membership No:028339
DIN No: 00052842 DIN No : 06846188 UDIN:24028339BKHHXE7201
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Operational Energy Group India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024

5.Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments -Unquoted

As at 31-03-2024
( Rs. in Lakhs))

As at 31-03-2023
( Rs. in Lakhs)

Subsidiary
9,800 Nos. (FY: 2023-24-9,800; 2022-23-9,800) Equity Shares of Pacific Technical Service India 43.15 45.56
Limited of Rs.10/- each ’ ’
5,60,000 Nos. (2023-24: 5,60,000, 2022-23-5,60,000) Equity Shares of Investment in Maxitech B B
Engineering Private Ltd of Rs.10/- each
36,603 Nos. (FY -2023-24 - 36603; 2022-23 - 36603 ) Equity Share of OEG Bangladesh Ltd of TK 361.04 219.90
100 each
51000 Nos.(FY -2023-24 -51000: 2022-23 -51000) Equity Shares of Investment in M/s. Pacific 4.76 5.10
Imperial Thermal Private Ltd of Rs.10/- each ’ ’
1500000 Nos. Equity Shares of Investmentin M/s. OEG Defence and Aerospace Private Ltd of 15.00 )
Rs.1/- each .
Associates
4,800 Nos. (FY: 2023-24 -4,800; 2022-23-4,800) Equity Shares of Thoothukudi Renew Waters ) )
Private Limited of Rs.10/- each
49990 Nos.(FY -2023-24 -49990: 2022-23 -49990) Equity Shares of Investment in M/s. Zuppa 5.00 5.00
OEG GENS Technologies Pvt Ltd of Rs.10/- each ’ ’
Others
1 No. (2023-24 and 2022-23) Equity Share of OEG Singapore... Ltd of SGD 44 each 0.0004 0.0004
9,999 Nos. (FY: 2023-24-9,999; 2022-23-9,999) Equity Shares of OEG Solar Energy Private 1.30 1.30
Limited of Rs.10/- each ’ ’
Investment in Rockfort Engineering Industries 49.00 49.00
25780 Nos. Equity Shares of Investment in M/s. Zuppa GEO Navigation Tech P Ltd of 350.00 350.00
Rs.1357.64/- each
Investments in Preference Shares -Unquoted (FVTOCI)
%,12,50.,0(')0 Nos. Non-Cumulative Preference Shares of South Ganga Waters Technologies 1,125.00 1,125.00
Private Limited of Rs.10/- each
Investments in Government Securities (At Amortised Cost)
National Savings Certificate (Ref.Note 5.1) 1.06 1.02
Total 1,955.31 1,801.88
5.1 Investments in Government Securities are offered as Security Deposit for Labour License
and Sales Tax Department
Aggregate Book Value of Un-Quoted Investments 1,955.31 1,801.88
Aggregate Impairment in value of Investments
5.2 Investments are fully paid-up unless otherwise stated
6. Loans and Advances
Related Parties- Secured , Considered good
Refundable Rental Advance 52.00 52.00
Loans & Advance 24.38 32.37
Sub -Total 76.38 84.37
Other Financial Assets- Secured , Considered good
Rental Advance 18.58 16.86
Other Advance - 0.38
Sub -Total 18.58 17.24
Total 94.96 101.61
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OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024

As at 31-03-2024

As at 31-03-2023

( Rs. in Lakhs) ( Rs. in Lakhs)
7 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Deferred Tax Assets
On Provision for Gratuity & Other Employee Benefits 51.04 67.35
51.04 67.35
Deferred Tax Liabilities
On Depreciation 32.36 -16.31
32.36 -16.31
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 83.40 51.04
7.1. Deferred Taxes are computed to the nearest '000
8. Other Non-Current Assets
Security Deposits 248.78 96.10
Net Asset recognised at the end of the period ( Gratuity Payable Dr balance ) 50.88 57.97
Service Tax stay deposit (Ref.Note Contingent Liabilities) 42.81 42.81
Total 342.46 196.88
9. Inventories
(As Verified , valued and certified by the Management)
Stock in trade 488.93 455.66
Total 488.93 455.66
9.1 . Mode of Valuation followed - FIFO
10. Trade Receivables (Financial Asset) - (Ref Note 1)
Unsecured Considered Good
Outstanding for less than 180 days from the date they are due
Related Parties - -
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 3,413.52 3,978.70
Total 3,413.52 3,978.70
11. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Financial Asset)
Balance with Banks 834.77 168.97
Cash on Hand 0.42 0.40
Cheques on Hand - -
Bank Fixed Deposit with maturity of period lessthan 12 months(Ref.Note 11.1) 4,021.13 2,633.17
Total 4,856.32 2,802.55
11.1. Fixed deposits include deposits with Banks of Rs.3914.63 lakhs, Margin money for the
Bank Guarantee of Rs.106.50 lakhs
12. Short Term Loans & Advances
Unsecured considered Good
Security Deposits,Inter Corporate Deposits and EMD - -
Retention money and other Job Advances 55.25 45.63
Sub -Total 55.25 45.63
Unsecured considered Good
Advances to Related Parties 1,155.38 718.78
Advance to Suppliers 1,361.83 1,358.29
Sub -Total 2,517.22 2,077.07
Total 2,572.46 2,122.70
13 Current Tax Assets
Income Tax (Net of Provision) 344.14 261.03
Total 344.14 261.03
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OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2024  As at 31-03-2023
( Rs. in Lakhs ) ( Rs. in Lakhs )
14. Share Capital
Equity Share Capital
a.Authorised
1,40,00,000/- (2024 : 1,40,00,000 and 2023 : 1,40,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,400.00 1,400.00
b.Issued
1,30,41,800 (2024 : 1,30,41,800 and 2023 :1.30,41,800) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Subscribed and fully paid up
1,30,41,800 (2024 : 1,30,41,800 and 2023 :1.30,41,800) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,304.18 1,304.18
Total 1,304.18 1,304.18
d. Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares subscribed
Balance at the begining of the year 130.42 130.42
Add: Shares issued during the year for cash -
Balance at the end of the year 130.42 130.42

14.1 Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any for
a year, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

14.2 Shareholders other than the Holding/Associate Company holding more than 5% of the equity share capital

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid:

Ramesh.S : 50,81,800 (2024-50,81,800 shares and 2023-50,81,800 Shares) shares aggregating to 38.97% (2024- 38.97% and 2023-38.97%
Vijay.Ramesh : 7,52,380 (2024 -7,52,380 shares and 2023- 7,52,380 Shares) shares aggregating to 5.77% (2024- 5.77% and 2023-5.77%)
Usha Ramesh : 9,25,200 (2024 -9,25,200 shares and 2023- 9,25,200.Shares) shares aggregating to 7.09% (2024- 7.09% and 2023- 7.09%)
Premier International Limited : 14,91,800 (2024-14,91,800 shares and 2023-14,91,800.Shares) shares aggregating to 11.44% (2024-
11.44% and 2023-11.44.%)

South Ganga Waters Technology Private Limited :26,05,200 (2024-26,05,200 shares and 2023 26,05,200.Shares) shares aggregating to
19.98% (2024- 19.98% and 2023 -19.98%)

e. Promoters Shareholding
Py "
SI.No Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total Shares % change during
the year
1 S.Ramesh 50,81,800 38.97 NIL
2 Sudarshan Ramesh 6,16,300 4.73 NIL
3 Subramanyam Swaminathan 12,500 0.10 NIL
Total Shares held by Promoters 57,10,600 43.80
'The Company has only one class of shares i.e . Equity Shares
15 Other Equity
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 4,858.09 3,550.13
Ind AS Adjustments - -
Add : Net Profit for the Year 1,366.52 1,307.95
Closing Balance 6,224.60 4,858.09
16 Long Term Borrowings (Financial Liabilities)
Secured
Vehicle Loan from Financial Institutions (Ref.Note 16.1, 16.2 & 16.3) 57.13 12.20
Total 57.13 12.20
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OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2024  As at 31-03-2023
( Rs. in Lakhs) ( Rs. in Lakhs)
Nature of Security Offered
16.1 Secured Vehicles loans from Financial institutions are secured by Hypothecation of the
Vehicles bought with the loan proceeds and personal guarantee by directors
Repayment Terms
16.2 Vehicle Loans from Financial Instituitions are repayable at 10.51% interest rate (Average)
in Equated Monthly Installments (EMI) for 47 months
16.3 Unsecured Loan from Financial Institutions are repayable at 8.69% interest rate (Average)
in Equated Monthly Installments (EMI) for 60 months
17 Long Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity Liabilities (Ref.Note 17.1) - -
Provision for Leave Encashment 23.94 17.99
Total 23.94 17.99
17.1 The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based
on an actuarial valuation.
18 Short Term Borrowings - Financial Liabilities
Cash Credit facilities from Banks (Ref.Note 18.1) 465.17 -
Total 465.17 -
18.1 Cash Credit from Banks represents cash credit facilities availed from Axis Bank for a limit
of Rs 10 Crores (Ten Crores Rupees Only) and are secured by hypothecation charge on stocks
and receivables of the company ,secured by hypothecation of lien free movable assets of the
Company ,by Equitable Mortgage of the immovable property of our company situated at Malli
Village and by Equitable Mortgage of the immovable property of Mr.S.Ramesh situated at
Adyar, Chennai-20 offered by him as collateral security and also Personal Gurantee by
Mr.S.Ramesh and Mrs.Usha Ramesh.
19 Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 18.61 105.65
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Others 1,954.50 1,136.83
Total 1,973.11 1,242.48
20 Other Current Liabilities
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 20.72 13.81
Statutory Liabilities 379.10 229.59
Salary & Expenses Payable 2,688.64 2,304.01
Retention Money, Deposits & Advances 1,702.71 2,398.04
Total 4,791.17 4,945.46
21 Short Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Bonus 233.78 245.11
Total 233.78 245.11
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024

As at 31-03-2024

Operational Energy Group India Limited

As at 31-03-2023

22 Revenue from Operations
From Sales

( Rs. in Lakhs))

( Rs. in Lakhs))

Sale of Maintenance Spares & Components 2,116.62 1,153.86
From Services
Operation and Maintenance Fees 26,190.97 24,064.59
Accrued Income 341.23 -32.54
Total 28,648.82 25,185.90
23 Other Income
Interest Income from
Bank Deposits 180.45 337.57
Interest on Income Tax refund 50.50 1.98
Other Interest 3.24 4.09
Other non-operating Income - -
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 2.79 0.03
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain - -
Miscellaneous Income
Total 236.98 343.66
24 Cost of Materials/ Services consumed - -
Cost of materials /Service consumed 13,804.92 12,408.10
Total 13,804.92 12,408.10
25 Changes in Inventories
Opening Stock
Maintenance Spares & Components 455.66 103.97
455.66 103.97
Closing Stock
Maintenance Spares & Components 488.93 455.66
488.93 455.66
Total 33.27 351.69
26 Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries and Wages 10,252.11 9,461.32
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 691.03 641.94
Staff Welfare Expenses 829.31 787.74
Total 11,772.45 10,891.00
27 Finance Charges
Interest Expenses 56.16 194.54
Interest on Income Tax Demand
TOTAL 56.16 194.54
28 Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation 72.28 94.75
Amortisation
TOTAL 72.28 94.75
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OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
( Rs. in Lakhs) ( Rs. in Lakhs)
29 Other Expenses
Operating Expenses (A)
Consumables & Tools - -
Diesel Expenses - -
Testing, Inspection and Calibration Charges - -
Other Operating Expenses - -
Other Expenses (B) - -
Power and Fuel Charges 16.93 27.76
Rent Paid 43.72 44.79
Rates and Taxes 22.59 128.79
Insurance Charges 11.21 7.25
Bad Debts -0.89 2.37
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 138.94
Repairs & Maintenance - -
-Buildings - -
-Equipments 12.48 9.93
Security Service Charges 5.28 5.51
Brokeage and Commission 0.36 2.05
Communication Expenses 22.99 24.08
Directors' Sitting Fee and Commission 78.94 59.87
Printing & Stationery 24.12 29.65
Professional Charges 1025.07 46.80
Payments to Auditors (Ref. note 29.1) 6.00 11.50
Subscriptions 2.27 3.15
Books and Periodicals 0.42 1.00
Business Promtion Expenses 85.10 40.29
Advertisement Expenses 1.79 2.90
Bank Charges 4.54 2.65
CSR Expenses 29.04 31.26
Donation 2.15 -
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 155.29 116.62
Vehicle Repairs and Maintenance Expenses 41.78 44.16
Pooja Expenses 6.49 6.96
Miscellaneous Expenses 21.08 44.36
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - -
Director remuneration 84.00 84.00
TOTAL 1,702.75 916.63
29.1 Payment to Auditors represents fee for Statutory audits
30. Earning Per Share
Profit After Tax (PAT) 1,366.52 1,307.95
Weighted average number of shares 130.42 130.42
Earning Per Share (Face value Rs.10/- each )
Basic 10.48 10.03
Dilluted 10.48 10.03

Operating Lease
Leasing of Immovable properties is treated as Operating lease as the tenure of the Lease is significantly lesser than the
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OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

1. A - General Information:

Operational Energy Group India Limited (the Company), is a public limited Company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 of India. Its shares are listed in one recognized stock
exchange in India. The registered office of the Company is located at A,5™ Floor, Gokul Arcade — East Wing, 2 & 2A
Sardar Patel Road, Adyar, Chennai — 600 020.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of operation & maintenance of power plants.
1. B - Statement of compliance:

a). The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

1. C - Significant accounting policies:
a). Basis of preparation of financial statements

i). In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company is required to
prepare its Financial Statements as per the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act (the Act), 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 with effect from1st April, 2016 and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

ii). Pursuant to the above said requirements, the Company has prepared these Financial Statements which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”).

iii). The financial statements of the Company are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and historical cost
convention except for certain material items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind
AS and explained in the ensuing policies below.

iv). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’) and all values are reported in full value without
rounding off except otherwise indicated.

b). Use of estimates and judgements

i). The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the
financial statements is made relying on these estimates.
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ii). The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by
the Company and are based on past experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations
of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future
periods. The critical accounting judgements and key estimates followed by the Company for preparation of financial
statements is described in Note 1(C) (s) herein.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain Financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and or disclosure
purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS-17, and measurements that have some

similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS-2 or value in use in Ind AS-36.

In addition, for Financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,2 or 3 based on

the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to

the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the schedule Il to the Companies Act. Based on the nature of Supplies and the time
involved in realization of the cash and cash equivalents for the same, the Company has determined its operating
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The significant accounting policies are detailed below.
c). Property, Plant and Equipment

i) . Cost model is adopted for Property, Plant and Equipment. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised as an asset if, and only if (a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the entity and (b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

ii). The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates,
any non-refundable import duties and other taxes, any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready
for its intended use by the Management, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected
costs of decommissioning.
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iii). Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. Expenditure

incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred.

iv). An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

v). Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative
purposes, are stated in the financial statements at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Freehold or Lease hold land is stated historical cost.

d). Intangible Assets

i). Anintangible asset is recognised if, and only if (a) it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and (b) the cost of the asset can be measured reliably as per the
assessment of the management.

ii). Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are initially recognized at Cost which
comprises of the purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly
attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use, and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

iii). Computer software costs are capitalized and recognised as intangible assets based on materiality, accounting
prudence and significant benefits expected to flow there from for a period longer than one year.

iv). An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

e). Depreciation/Amortisation

i). Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land) less their residual values
over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The useful life of an asset is the period over which an asset is
expected to be available for use by an entity.

ii). Amortisation is recognised on a straight- line basis over the estimated useful lives.

iii). Depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets added/disposed off
during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition/disposal.
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iv). Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically as
appropriate in the views of the management and also at the end of each reporting period and adjusted if required.

v). Operating Software are amortised over a period of 3 years being their estimated useful life.
vi). There are no assets under Financial Lease during the Financial year

vii). Estimated useful lives of the assets, based on technical assessment by the Management, which are different
in certain cases from those prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act, are as follows:

Useful Life Estimated by Useful Life as per

Class of Property, Plant and Equipment

Management Schedule Il

Buildings 5-60 years 60 Years
Plant and Equipment 15 years 15 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 1-10 years 10 Years
Motor Cars and Scooters 4-10 years 8 Years
Office Equipment 2 -10 years 5 Years
Computers

Servers & Networks 6 Years 6 Years

End Users Devices 3 Years 3 Years

f). Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

i). At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

ii). There are no Intangible Assets with indefinite useful lives.

iii). An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv). When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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g). Borrowing Cost

i). Borrowing costs comprises of interest and other costs that are incurred by the

Company in connection with the borrowing of funds and also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded
as an adjustment to the finance costs.

ii). Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Qualifying Asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

h). Cash and Cash Equivalents and Cash Flow Statement
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand and demand deposits with

an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding bank Cash
Credits repayable on demand, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Cash flow statements are reported using indirect method and the cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

i). Inventories
i). Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

ii). Inventories of stores, spare parts and loose tools are stated at the lower of cost under FIFO method and net
realizable value.

iii). Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories in the ordinary course of business less
all estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

j)- Loans & Advances, Trade Payables and Receivables
Advances, balances with government departments, Trade Payables and receivables, other loans and advances and

deposits classified under non current and current are subject to confirmation. There are certain old balances
pending review / adjustment. The management does not expect any significant impact upon such reconciliation.

k). Revenue Recognition
i). Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

ii). The Company is engaged in the business of providing Operations and Maintenance (‘O&M'’) services to various
power plants and the revenues are governed by the Operations and Maintenance agreements entered with the
owners of these power plants. Revenue from Operation and maintenance (O&M) services rendered by the
Company to Power Plants Operators are recognised over the period of the contract on straight line method (vide
Ind AS 18.25) and unrecognized revenue (received in advance) is shown as unearned revenue.

iii). Revenue from sale of spares and consumables relevant for the O&M services are being incidental to the O&M
Services and are recognised on delivery of the same to the customers and no significant uncertainty exists as to its
realization.

iv). Other revenues from ancillary activities incidental to the main operations of the Company and is recognised

when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.
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v). Dividend and interest income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment has been

established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably).

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably).

I). Foreign currency transactions
i). The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in

which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR). The Financial Statements
are presented in INR.

ii). In preparing the financial statements of the Company transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (i.e, foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

iii). At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date (closing rate). Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

iv). Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

v). Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they arise.

m). Employee Benefits

i) Defined Contribution Plan

Eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company as the employer makes monthly contributions at a
specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions are made to the provident fund and
pension fund set up by the Government. The Contributions to the Provident fund by the Company are recognized
as expenses and included in “Contribution to Provident and Other Fund” under employee benefit expenses in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The
plan provides for a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, while in employment or on
termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service.

The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.
The defined benefit plan for gratuity is funded. The liabilities for the gratuity obligations are recognized as expenses
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as per the actuarial valuation at the end of the reporting period.

The principal assumption used for Actuarial valuations of gratuity obligations is:
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31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Discount Rate 7.21% 7.48%
Expected Salary Increment rate 7.00% 7.00%
Average longevity at retirement age- Past services 2.68 2.40
Average longevity at retirement age- Future services 9.04 8.59

The expenses recognized towards the defined contribution and defined benefit plan, by the Company are:

Rs. in Lakhs

‘ 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

Defined Contribution Plan 557.60 459.96
Defined Benefit Plan 395.93 314.72

n). Taxation

Income Tax expenses represents the aggregate amount included in the determination of Profit or Loss for the period
in respect of Current Tax and Deferred Tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

i) Current Tax

Current tax is determined on the Taxable Profits for the year chargeable to Income Tax, as per the provisions of
Income Tax Act, 1961 including other applicable tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the
applicable tax rates prescribed by said Income Tax laws.

ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is
recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred
income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or
the substantive enactment date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets relate to the same taxable entity and same taxation authority.
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Current and deferred tax are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

iii). Minimum Alternative Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified period allowed by the prevailing tax
laws for adjustments of the credit with normal tax liabilities. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible
to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss. The
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income-
tax during the said specified period.

0). Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company (the numerator) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (the denominator)
during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Potential
equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per
share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the
financial statements by the Board of Directors.

p). Provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments

i). Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

ii). The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

iii). When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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iv). A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is-

a. apossible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity
or

b. a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because 1). it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or 2). the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

v). A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity.

vi). Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets.

vii). Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

viii). Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

d). Financial Instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value. In the case of a financial asset or
financial liability measured not at fair value through profit or loss, the transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability are adjusted in the value of financial asset or
financial liability

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
a. Financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: - amortised cost; or
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
- Fair value through profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses if any. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. A
financial asset is subsequently measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
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by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its
investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

b. Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses:

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised
in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial
liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Group's balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary
shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

r). Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

A lease is classified at the inception date as an operating lease. The Company does not have financial lease.

The Company as lessor:

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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The Company as lessee:

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments (discounted at the interest rate implicit
in the lease or at the entity’s incremental borrowing rate). The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for
the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits
accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

s) Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s
other components and whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete
financial information is available.

The Executive and Managing Director of the Company is the ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the
meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes may evolve in connection with
performance assessment measures put in place. The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators. The Company is primarily engaged in “Operation
and Maintenance (O&M) of power plants” in domestic sector only during the current year.

t) Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

Key sources of estimation uncertainties:

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment: Management reviews the useful life and residual
values of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both
the technical life of the assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors
including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best
information available to the Management.

Impairment of property plant and equipment:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined
on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated
commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other
factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above-mentioned factors could impact the
carrying value of assets.

Contingent Liabilities:

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the
Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify
reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognised. The
Claim against the company in respect of service tax is Rs.2,48,47,765/-. The Company has won the first case at
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CESTAT and hence there is no requirement of contingent liability for this in the future period. Then other cases are
similar in nature and hence it is expected to be in favour of the company.

Fair value measurements:

Some of the Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The management
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurements. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the
extentitis available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

Defined benefit plans:

The cost of defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligations are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual development in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary escalations and
mortality rates etc. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Lease:

The Company has offered its immovable property at Srivilliputhur on long term lease to an educational Trust. The said
lease is treated as Operating lease as the tenure of the Lease is significantly lesser than the economic life of the Assets
leased out, as per the estimate made by the Management.

Tax:

The Company is subject to tax, principally in India. The amount of tax payable in respect of any period is dependent upon
the interpretation of the relevant tax rules. Whilst an assessment must be made of deferred tax position of each entity
within the Company, these matters are inherently uncertain until the position of each entity is agreed with the relevant
tax authorities

The Company’s pending litigations comprise mainly claims against the Company, property disputes, proceedings pending
with Tax and other Authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made
adequate provisions, wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial
statements. The Company does not reasonably expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact on
its financial statements.

u. Inventories as at the reporting date:

Normally the Company procures inventories and other consumables for rendering its O&M services, EPC services
and for sales, being incidental activity in connection with the O&M service and EPC contracts, as and when the
requirements arise.

v- Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has laid down the CSR policy for the activities where the CSR funds shall be spent in accordance with
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Since the CSR provisions are applicable to the Company for the year 2023-
24, the amount of CSR spending and the Board had approved the donation to M/s. Yashas English School in Malli
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Village to promote the cause of education. The school has been providing quality education to underprivileged
children free of cost since 2016.
The mandatory CSR spending for the year 2023-24 as per Section 135 Companies Act, 2013 is as follows:

Particulars Amount (in Lakhs)
Net Profit for the Financial year 2022-23 (A) 1376.23
Net Profit for the Financial year 2021-22 (B) 1385.22
Net Profit for the Financial year 2020-21 (C) 1089.23
Average Net Profit (A+B+C/ 3) 1283.56
2% of the average net profits — Amount to be spent as CSR during the FY 2023-24 25.67

Particulars Amount (in Rs.Lakhs)
(1) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 25.67
(ii) Amount of expenditure incurred 29.04
(iii) shortfall at the end of the year 0
(iv) Total of Previous years shortfall 0
(v) Reason for Shortfall 0
(vi) Nature of CSR activities Donation to School

(vii) Details of related party transactions,

E.g., Contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR
expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard: -

(viii) Where a provision is made with respect a liability incurred by entering into a
contractual obligation, the Movements in the provition during year shall be shown
separately. 0

M/s. Yashas English School is an ICSE affiliated school located in the village of Malli, Srivilliputtur, Tamilnadu. This
is the location where the company has commenced its operations in the year 1994. This School provides ICSE
standard education to the children of the village wherein no other ICSE schools are functioning.

Business Combinations:
The company does not have any Business Combinations.

Scheme of Arrangements:
There has been no Scheme of Arrangements entered into between the Company and its Subsidiaries.

Capital management & Risk Management Strategies:

Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The board of directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s
risk management policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company,
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through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management
policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced
by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to
the audit committee.

Capital management

The Company being in O&M service industry which requires huge working capital for its operation, its objective is
to maintain a strong credit rating healthy capital ratio and establish a capital structure that would maximise the
return to stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and equity.

The Company’s capital requirement is mainly to fund its working capital, repayment of principal and interest on its
borrowings and strategic acquisitions. The principal source of funding of the Company has been, and is expected to
continue to be, cash generated from its operations supplemented by funding through borrowings from Banks &
Financial Institutions.

The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversify its debt profile, reduce
interest cost and align maturity profile of its debt commensurate with life of the asset and closely monitors its
judicious allocation amongst competing capital expansion projects and strategic acquisitions, to capture market
opportunities at minimum risk.

Financial risk management
The Company’s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and

international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company.
These risks include (i) Credit risk, (ii) Liquidity risk and (iii) Market risk

The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using periodic monitoring and action plans to cover up
risk exposures, wherever required. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including
derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining
sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The
Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored.

In addition, the Company is exposed to credit risk in relation to financial guarantees given to banks provided by the
Company. The Company’s maximum exposure in this respect is the maximum amount the Company could have to
pay if the guarantee is called on. No amount has been recognised in the financial position as financial liabilities.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:
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Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including
the default risk of the industry.

Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers based on which the Company agrees on the credit
terms with customers in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses
expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute
the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. The provision matrix takes into
account available external and internal credit risk factors and the Company's historical experience for customers.

Aging Schedule of Receivables

Rs.in
Lakhs

Outstanding for the Following Periods from due date of Payment

Particul
articuiar Lessthan 6 Months | 1to2 2t03 More than 3

6 Months to 1 Year Years Years Years 1yl

(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables- considered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade
receivables - which have
significant increase in credit
risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade
receivables - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade
receivables - Considered good
(v) Disputed Trade receivables
- which have significant
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade
receivables - credit impaired

3413.52 3413.52

Trade payables:

TRADE PAYABLES AGING SCHEDULE Rs.in Lakhs
Outstanding for the Following Periods from due date of Payment

Particular Less than 1 1to2Years 2 to 3 Years More than 3
Year Years
MSME 18.61 18.61
Others 1954.50 1954.50
Disputed Dues-MSME 0

Disputed Dues-Others 0
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Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an

appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short-term, medium-

term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by

maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring

forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the

return.

As of now, the Company has not entered into any sort of derivative contracts, in order to manage market risks.

Finance Lease Receivable
The Company does not have any finance lease receivable.

Financial Ratios Analysis

Types of Ratios Formula Numerator

CURRENT YEAR

PREVIOUS YEAR

Rs in
Lakhs

Variance

(a) Current Ratio Current Assets / 11675.37 7463.23 1.56 9620.64 6433.05 1.50 -4.40

Current

Liabilities
(b) Debt-Equity Total Outside 57.13 7528.78 0.01 12.20 6162.27 0.00 -73.92
Ratio Liabilities/

Shareholders

Equity
(c) Debt services Earning 1638.95 56.16 | 29.19 1665.51 194.54 8.56 -70.67
Coverage Ratio, available for

debt service/ (

Interest +

Instalments)
(d) Return on PAT / Equity 1204.88 7528.78 0.16 1057.22 6162.27 0.17 7.20
Equity Ratio Shareholders

Funds
(e) Inventory Cost of Goods 13804.92 472.29 | 29.23 | 12408.10 279.81 44.34 51.71
Turnover ratio, sold / Average

Inventory
(f) Trade Total Sales / 28648.82 3696.11 7.75 | 25185.90 3232.78 7.79 0.51
Receivables Average Trade
turnover ratio, Receivables
(g) Trade payables | Total Purchase / 13804.92 1607.79 8.59 | 12408.10 1169.67 10.61 23.55
turnover ratio, Average Trade

payables
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(h) Net capital Sales / Capital 28648.82 7609.86 3.76 | 25185.90 6192.45 4.07 8.04

turnover ratio Employed

(i) Net profit ratio | Net profit (PAT)/ 1204.88 28648.82 |0.0421 1057.22 25185.90 0.04 -0.19
Sales

(j) Return on EBIT / Capital 1638.95 7609.86 0.22 1665.51 6192.45 0.27 24.88

capital employed, | Employed

Approval of financial statements:

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on 28-05-2024.

For Operational Energy Group India Limited

S RAMESH

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN &
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN NO: 00052842

S. V. NATARAJAN
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PLACE: CHENNAI
DATE: 28.05.2024
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Related Party Disclosures
The deemed related party transactions for the Financial Year 2023-24 of the company.

All the transactions have been approved by the Board and the Audit Committee, wherever necessary.

Related Party
SLNo Nature of Relationship \ Name of the related party
Pacific Technical Services Private Limited
Maxitech Engineering Private Limited
OEG Bangladesh Private Limited
1 Subsidiary Companies Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Ltd
OEG Defence and Aerospace Private Limited
OEG Nigeria Limited
2 Step down subsidiary Operational Energy Generation FZCO
3 Associate Zuppa OEG GENS5 Technologies Private Limited
4 Directors and Key Managerial | S. Ramesh (Chairman and Managing Director)
Personnels Usha Ramesh (Non- Executive Director)
N.S.R.Ganesh Babu (Independent Director)
P.Swaminathan (Independent Director)
S.V.Natarajan (Chief Financial Officer)
Ramya Sachin Inamdar (Company Secretary)
5 Relative of Director or Key | Sudarshan Ramesh (Son of Executive Managing Director)
Managerial Personnel Vijay Ramesh (Son of Executive Managing Director)
Lakshmi Pratha K (Daughter in law of Managing Director)
Kavitha Natarajan (wife of CFO)
6 Entities in which Directors, | South Ganga Waters Technologies Private Limited
K.MR Ot thelr relatives have OEG Solar Energy Private Limited
significant influence
Rockfort Engineering Industries
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Note No. - Related party Disclosures: Transactions with Related Parties

In lakhs
Particulars Subsidiary =~ Entitiesin Key Relativesof 5053 24 2022-23
/ Associate which KMP or | Managerial KMP

their Personnel

relatives have

significant

influence
Cost of - - - - - -
Services
received
Service - - - - - -
charges paid
Loans given 340.60 130.99 - - 47160 | 31883
Reimburseme - - - - - 1.06
nt of expenses

204.73 56.86 261.59
Remuneration - - 239.746
paid
Loans repaid - 35.00 7.99 - 42.99 62.14
Security - - - - -
Deposit given
. 41.58 41.58 42.16
Rent paid - - -
Service - 360.00 - - 360.00
Charges for
water
treatment
Outstanding Balance With related parties In lakhs

Entities in Key Relatives 2023-24 2022-23

Particulars |Subsidiary/
which KMP or Managerial of KMP

Associate

their relatives = Personnel
have significant

influence
581.59 246.25 24.37 ) 852.22 384.60
Loans given
430.25 1174.00 - - 1604.25 1450.85
[nvestments
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Operational Energy Group India Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of OPERATIONAL ENERGY GROUP INDIA
LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the “ Company”) and its Jointly controlled entities, which comprises the
consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including
Other Comprehensive Income, the consolidated Statement of changes in equity and the consolidated Statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as
amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Company and its jointly controlled entities as at March 31, 2024, of consolidated profit including other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company and its jointly controlled entities in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW IT WAS ADDRESSED DURING AUDIT

Recognition of revenue is complex due to several We have tested the relevant internal controls used to
types of customer contracts including Operation and ensure the completeness, accuracy and timing of
maintenance contracts of power plants and process revenue recognition, including controls over the
plants. decree of completion of service contracts.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The respective Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis and the Company’s
Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon, which are expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the report and other information as stated above, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Company and its Jointly controlled entities in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and jointly controlled entities are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and its Jointly controlled entities and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Company and of its
Jointly controlled entities are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company and of its Jointly controlled
entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
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going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and its Jointly controlled entities are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Company and its Jointly controlled entities.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of the users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Company and its Jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company and its Jointly controlled entities to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the company and its jointly controlled entities to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
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auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of, the Subsidiaries included in the Consolidated
financial results whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of Rs.815.18 Lakhs as at 31st
March, 2024, total revenues of Rs.1274.64 Lakhs, total net profit after tax of Rs.191.45 Lakhs, total comprehensive
income of Rs.191.45 Lakhs and net cash Inflows amounting to Rs.142.32 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements / financial information have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
jointly controlled companies, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar
as it relates to the aforesaid jointly controlled companies, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated financial statement includes unaudited financial statement / financial information of the
subsidiary whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of Rs.4226.99 Lakhs as at 31st
March, 2024, total revenues of Rs.1602.61 Lakhs, total net profit after tax of Rs.269.54 Lakhs, total comprehensive
income of Rs.274.73 Lakhs and net cash Inflows amounting to Rs.470.53 Lakhs for the year ended on that date.

The consolidated financial statements include investment of Rs. 15 lakhs in wholly owned subsidiary. Since the
company is incorporated in the month of February 2024, the financial statements of the same has not been
consolidated and the investment alone is considered in the consolidated financial statements.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports
of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from Directors as on 31 March 2024 taken on record, by
the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as Director
in terms of clauses referred to section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”.

(g) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has paid \ provided
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V of the companies Act, 2013.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Company and its jointly controlled entities- Refer Note 33(B) to the consolidated financial
statements.

(ii) The Company and its jointly controlled entities did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company and its Jointly controlled companies incorporated in India.

(iv)(a) The respective managements of the company have represented that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
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other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b)The respective managements of the company and have represented that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed by us that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above contain any material mis-statement.

(v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

(vi)Based on our examination which included test checks, and as communicated by the respective auditor of three
subsidiaries, except for the instances mentioned below, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India have used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the respective softwares:

i. In case of the three subsidiary companies incorporated in India, the feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility was not enabled for the period 1% April 2023 to 13" August 2023.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year for the
respective accounting softwares, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
(the “Order”/ “CARQ”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in
the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports
issued by us for the Company and issued by us for the jointly controlled entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.
For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 002510S

G.Vivekananthan
Partner
Membership No: 028339
UDIN: 24028339BKHHXF2049
Place: Chennai
Date: 28/05/2024
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ANNEXURE- A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date
to the Members of Operational Energy Group India Limited on the Consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended March 31,2024)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Section 143(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements of Operational Energy Group India Limited (“the Company”) and its Jointly
controlled entities, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the company and its jointly controlled companies which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over Financial Reporting with reference
to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the Company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to consolidated
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under section 143 (3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates
to four jointly controlled companies, which are incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the
auditor of the companies.

Opinion

In our opinion the Company, and its jointly controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place: Chennai For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Date: 28/05/2024 Chartered Accountants
FRN: 002510S
G.Vivekananthan

Partner
Membership No: 028339
UDIN: 24028339BKHHXF2049
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31-03-2024

Particulars Note As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
( Rs. in Lakhs) ( Rs. in Lakhs)
I. ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
a. Property, Plant & Equipment 2 946.17 875.73
b. Investment Property 3 20.46 29.25
c. Intangible Assets 4 2.27 1.84
d. Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 1,541.36 1,526.32
(ii) Loans and Advances 6 95.37 101.64
e. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 83.40 51.04
f. Other Non-Current Assets 8 342.46 196.88
(2) Current Assets
a. Inventories 9 488.93 455.66
b. Financial Assets
(i)Trade Receivables 10 4,439.01 3,993.83
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 8,565.75 5,904.81
(iii) Short Term Loans and Advances 12 2,484.76 1,884.79
c. Current Tax Assets 13 329.79 286.79
TOTAL 19,339.73 15,308.58
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
a. Equity Share Capital 14 1,304.18 1,304.18
b. Other Equity 15 7,872.91 6,235.43
Non - Controlling Interest 16 60.50 -7.55
(2) Non-Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Long Term Borrowings 17 61.03 16.10
b. Long Term Provisions 18 23.94 17.99
(3) Current Liabilities
a Financial Liabilities
(i) Short Term Borrowings 19 465.17 -
(ii) Trade Payables 20 2,595.74 2,081.71
b Other Current Liabilities 21 6,659.72 5,398.21
c Short Term Provisions 22 296.53 262.51
TOTAL 19,339.73 15,308.58
Significant Accounting Policies and other information
Note 1 to 31 form integral part of Financial Statement
As per our report of even date
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
. . L. Chartered Accountants
For Operational Energy Group India Limited ERN : 0025105
S.RAMESH N.S.R GANESH BABU G. VIVEKANANTHAN
Executive Chairman & Managing Director Independent Director Partner
DIN No: 00052842 DIN No : 06846188 Membership No:028339
UDIN:24028339BKHHXF2049
S V NATARAJAN RAMYA SACHIN INAMDAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Chennai
Date :28-05-2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-03-2024

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
( Rs. in Lakhs) ( Rs. in Lakhs)

Income
Revenue from Operations 23 31,479.05 26,345.13
Other Income 24 281.72 797.17
Total Revenue 31,760.77 27,142.30
Expenses
Cost of Materials /Services consumed 25 13,875.71 12,588.62
Changes in Inventories 26 - 33.27 |- 351.69
Employee Benefit Expenses 27 13,375.23 12,112.87
Finance Cost 28 57.45 195.07
Depreciation and Amotisation Expenses 29 78.56 104.54
Other Expenses 30 2,369.99 1,239.47
Total Expenses 29,723.68 25,888.88
Profit before Exceptional items and Tax 2037.09 1253.42
Exceptional Items
Profit after Exceptional items and Tax 2037.09 1253.42
Profit Before Tax 2037.09 1253.42
Tax Expenses

(1) Current Tax 407.56 379.19

(2) Deferred Tax -32.36 16.31
Profit (loss) for the period from continuing operations 1661.88 857.92

Profit (loss) from discontinuing operations - -
Tax expense of Discontinuing operations - -
Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing operation - -
Profit/(Loss) For the period 1,661.88 857.92
Other Comprehensive Income

A i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Actuarial re measurements 23.24 63.26

Fair Value measurement of Financial instrument ( FVTOCI) 138.40 187.48

ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
Profit or Loss 710.59 3771
B i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss

ii) Income Tax relating to items that will reclassified to Profit
or Loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income 151.05 213.02
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1812.93 1070.94
Earning Per equity Share of face value of Rs.10/- each
Basic & Diluted 31 13.90 8.21

Significant Accounting Policies and other information
Note 1 to 31 form integral part of Financial Statement
As per our report of even date
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements
For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam

Chartered Accountants

For Operational Energy Group India Limited ERN : 0025108

S.RAMESH N.S.R GANESH BABU G. VIVEKANANTHAN
Executive Chairman & Managing Director Independent Director Partner
DIN No: 00052842 DIN No : 06846188 Membership No:028339

UDIN:24028339BKHHXF2049

S V NATARAJAN RAMYA SACHIN INAMDAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date :28-05-2024
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT-CONSOLIDATED

31.03.2024

Operational Energy Group India Limited

31.03.2023

Annexure to Clause 32 of the listing Agreement
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before Tax

Less:- Provision for Taxation

Net Profit after Tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation

Other Comprehensive Income

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Interest/Dividend

Operating profit before working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Sundry Debtors
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories and other current assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances
Decrease in preoperation expenses
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities

SUB TOTAL

Cash generated from Operating activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Sale of Fixed Assets

Purchase/Sale of Investments

Long term Loans and Advances

Net cash generated/Used from/in Investing Activities
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of share capital

Proceeds from long term borrowings (net)
Proceeds from working capital Loan
Reapyment of finance lease liabilities

Dividend paid

Net cash generated/used in Financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash Equivalents (Opening Balance)
Cash and cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs )

2,037.09
375.20
1,661.89

78.56

1,673.17
-445.18
-76.26
-599.97
2,274.72
1,153.31
2,826.48

-140.64

-15.04
-139.30
-216.42

50.88

50.88
2,660.94
5,904.81
8,565.75

1,253.42
379.19
874.23

104.54
163.85

1,142.62
-582.47
-296.44
-120.24
-415.64

-1,414.79
-272.17

-443.83
-295.39

-28.86
-768.08

-11.97

-11.97
-1,052.22
6,957.03
5,904.81

For Operational Energy Group India Limited

S.RAMESH

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN &
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN NO:00052842

N.S.R GANESH BABU
Independent Director

DIN No : 06846188

S.V.NATARAJAN
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

RAMYA SACHIN INAMDAR
Company Secretary

PLACE : CHENNAI
DATE : 28/05/2024

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002510S

G.VIVEKANANTHAN
PARTNER

MEMBERSHIP NO:028339
UDIN:24028339BKHHXF2049
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OEG INDIA Operational Energy Group India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
5.Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments -Unquoted
Subsidiary
150000 Nos. Equity Shares of Investment in M/s. OEG Defence and Aerospace Private Ltd 15.00 0.00
of Rs.1/- each ’ :
Others
1 No. (2023-24 and 2022-23) Equity Share of OEG Singapore... Ltd of SGD 44 each 0.0004 0.0004
9,999 Nos. (FY: 2023-24-9,999; 2022-23-9,999) Equity Shares of OEG Solar Energy Private 1.30 1.30

Limited of Rs.10/- each
Investment in Rockfort Engineering Industries 49.00 49.00
25780 Nos. Equity Shares of Investmentin M/s. Zuppa GEO Navigation Tech P Ltd of

350.00 350.00
Rs.1357.64/- each
Investments in Preference Shares -Unquoted (FVTOCI) - -
:!.,12,59,090 Nos. Non-Cumulative Preference Shares of South Ganga Waters Technologies 1,125.00 1,125.00
Private Limited of Rs.10/- each
Investments in Government Securities (At Amortised Cost) - -
National Savings Certificate (Ref.Note 5.1) 1.06 1.02
Total 1,541.36 1,526.32
5.1 Investments in Government Securities are offered as Security Deposit for Labour
License and Sales Tax Department
Aggregate Book Value of Un-Quoted Investments 1,541.36 1,526.32
Aggregate Impairment in value of Investments
5.2 Investments are fully paid-up unless otherwise stated
6. Loans and Advances
Related Parties- Secured , Considered good
Refundable Rental Advance 52.00 52.00
Loans & Advance 24.38 32.37
Sub -Total 76.38 84.37

Other Financial Assets- Secured , Considered good
Rental Advance 18.99 17.27
Other Advance -

Sub -Total 18.99 17.27
Total 95.37 101.64
7 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Deferred Tax Assets
On Provision for Gratuity & Other Employee Benefits 51.04 67.35
Sub -Total 51.04 67.35
Deferred Tax Liabilities
On Depreciation 32.36 -16.31
Sub -Total 32.36 -16.31
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 83.40 51.04
7.1. Deferred Taxes are computed to the nearest '000
8. Other Non-Current Assets
Security Deposits 248.78 96.10
Bank Deposits for a maturity period greater than 12 months - -
Net Asset recognised at the end of the period ( Gratuity Payable Dr balance) 50.88 57.97
Service Tax stay deposit (Ref.Note Contingent Liabilities) 42.81 42.81
Total 342.46 196.88
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024

As at 31-03-2024

Operational Energy Group India Limited

As at 31-03-2023

Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
9. Inventories
(As Verified , valued and certified by the Management) - -
Stock in trade 488.93 455.66
Total 488.93 455.66
9.1. Mode of Valuation followed - FIFO
10. Trade Receivables (Financial Asset)
Unsecured Considered Good
Outstanding for less than 180 days from the date they are due
Related Parties - -
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 4,439.01 3,993.83
Total 4,439.01 3,993.83
11. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Financial Asset) - -
Balance with Banks 4,318.62 3,021.54
Cash on Hand 0.68 0.69
Cheques on Hand - -
Bank Fixed Deposit with maturity of period lessthan 12 months(Ref.Note 11.1) 4,246.46 2,882.58
Total 8,565.75 5,904.81
11.1. Fixed deposits include deposits with Banks of Rs.4139.96 lakhs, Margin money for the
Bank Guarantee of Rs.106.50 lakhs
12. Short Term Loans & Advances
Unsecured considered Good
Security Deposits,Inter Corporate Deposits and EMD 5.69 4.19
Retention money and other Job Advances 243.05 117.28
Sub -Total 248.74 121.46
Unsecured considered Good - -
Advances to Related Parties 871.24 399.64
Advance to Suppliers 1,364.78 1,363.69
Sub -Total 2,236.02 1,763.33
Total 2,484.76 1,884.79
13 Current Tax Assets
Income Tax (Net of Provision) 264.98 202.50
Prepaid Value Added Taxes 64.81 84.29
Total 329.79 286.79
14. Share Capital
Equity Share Capital
a.Authorised
1,40,00,000/- (2024 : 1,40,00,000 and 2023 : 1,40,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,400.00 1,400.00
b.Issued
1,30,41,800 (2024 : 1,30,41,800 and 2023 :1.30,41,800) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Subscribed and fully paid up
1,30,41,800 (2024 : 1,30,41,800 and 2023 :1.30,41,800) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,304.18 1,304.18
Total 1,304.18 1,304.18
d. Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares subscribed
Balance at the begining of the year 130.42 130.42
Add: Shares issued during the year for cash -
Balance at the end of the year 130.42 130.42
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Operational Energy Group India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024
14.1 Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

As at 31-03-2024

As at 31-03-2023

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any
for a year, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.

14.2 Shareholders other than the Holding/Associate Company holding more than 5% of
the equity share capital
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid:

Ramesh.S : 50,81,800 (2024-50,81,800 shares and 2023-50,81,800 Shares) shares aggregating to 38.97% (2024- 38.97% and 2023-

38.97%)

Vijay.Ramesh : 7,52,380 (2024 -7,52,380 shares and 2023- 7,52,380 Shares) shares aggregating to 5.77 % (2024- 5.77% and 2023-

5.77%)

Usha Ramesh : 9,25,200 (2024 -9,25,200 shares and 2023- 9,25,200.Shares) shares aggregating to 7.09% (2024- 7.09% and 2023-

7.09%)

Premier International Limited : 14,91,800 (2024-14,91,800 shares and 2023-14,91,800.Shares) shares aggregating to 11.44% (2024-

11.44% and 2023-11.44.%)

South Ganga Waters Technology Private Limited :26,05,200 (2024-26,05,200 shares and 2023 26,05,200.Shares) shares aggregating to

19.98% (2024- 19.98% and 2023 -19.98%)

e. Promoters Shareholding

% change during the
SI.No Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total Shares year
1 S.Ramesh 50,81,800 38.97 [NIL
2 Sudarshan Ramesh 6,16,300 4.73 |NIL
3 Subramanyam Swaminathan 12,500 0.10 |NIL
Total Shares held by Promoters 57,10,600 43.80

The Company has only one class of shares i.e . Equity Shares

15 Other Equity

As at 31-03-2024

As at 31-03-2023

Retained Earnings Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
Reserves & Surplus -Operational Energy Group India Limited 6,224.60 4,858.09
Reserves & Surplus -Maxitech Engineering Private Limited -204.54 -162.03
Reserves & Surplus -Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited 1,891.55 1,604.68
Reserves & Surplus -OEG Bangladesh Private Limited 386.50 230.43
Reserves & Surplus -Thoothukudi Renew Waters Private Limited - -
Reserves & Surplus -Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Limited 4.53 4.76
Reserves & Surplus -Zuppa OEG Gen5 Technologies Private Limited - -
Total Reserves & Surplus 8,302.65 6,535.93
Less -Maxitech Engineering Private Limited -Investment - -
Less -Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited -Investment 43.15 45.56
Less -OEG Bangladesh Private Limited -Investment 361.04 219.90
Less -Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Limited-Investment 4.76 5.10
Less -Zuppa OEG Gen5 Technologies Private Limited -Investment 5.00 5.00
Total 7,888.69 6,260.38
Exchange Variations -15.78 -24.94
Operational Energy Group India Limited share of Investment in Zuppa OEG Gen 5
Technologies Private Limited . }
Operational Energy Group India Limited share of Investment in Thoothukudi Renew Waters
Private Limited

Closing Balance 7,872.91 6,235.43
16. Non-Controlling Interests
Pacific Technical Services India Private Limited 31.34 25.89
Maxitech Engineering Private Limited -27.89 -69.44
Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Limited 4.35 4.57
Thoothukudi Renew Waters Private Limited - -
OEG Bangladesh Private Limited 52.70 31.42

Total 60.50 -7.55
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As at 31-03-2024

Operational Energy Group India Limited

As at 31-03-2023

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024

Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
17 Long Term Borrowings (Financial Liabilities)
Secured
Vehicle Loan from Financial Institutions (Ref.Note 17.1 & 17.2) 57.13 12.20
Unsecured - -
From Related Parties (Ref.Note 17.3) 3.90 3.90
Total 61.03 16.10

Nature of Security Offered

17.1 Secured Vehicles loans from Financial institutions are secured by Hypothecation of the Vehicles bought with the loan proceeds

and personal guarantee by directors

Repayment Terms

17.2 Vehicle Loans from Financial Instituitions are repayable at 10.51% interest rate (Average) in EQuated Monthly Installments

(EMI) for 47 months

17.3 Unsecured Loan from Financial Institutions are repayable at 8.69% interest rate (Average) in Equated Monthly Installments

(EMI) for 60 months

As at 31-03-2024

As at 31-03-2023

18 Long Term Provisions Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity Liabilities (Ref.Note 18.1) - -
Provision for Leave Encashment 23.94 17.99
Total 23.94 17.99

18.1 The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.

19 Short Term Borrowings - Financial Liabilities
Cash Credit facilities from Banks (Ref.Note 19.1)

465.17

Total

465.17

19.1 Cash Credit from Banks represents Cash credit facilities availed from Axis Bank for a limit of Rs 10 Crores (Ten Crores Rupees
Only) and are secured by hypothecation charge on stocks and receivables of the company, secured by hypothecation of lien free
movable assets of the Company , by Equitable Mortgage of the immovable property of our company situated at Malli Village and by
Equitable Mortgage of the immovable property of Mr.S.Ramesh situated at Adyar, Chennai-20 offered by him as collateral security

and also Personal Gurantee by Mr.S.Ramesh and Mrs.Usha Ramesh.

As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
20 Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 18.61 105.65
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Others 2,577.13 1,976.06
Total 2,595.74 2,081.71
21 Other Current Liabilities
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 20.72 13.81
Statutory Liabilities 414.73 254.74
Salary & Expenses Payable 3,069.94 2,526.79
Retention Money, Deposits & Advances 3,154.33 2,602.87
Total 6,659.72 5,398.21
22 Short Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Bonus 296.53 262.51
Total 296.53 262.51
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
23 Revenue from Operations
From Sales
Sale of Maintenance Spares & Components 3,716.24 1,153.86
From Services
Operation and Maintenance Fees 27,421.57 25,223.81
Accrued Income 341.23 -32.54
Total 31,479.05 26,345.13
24 Other Income
Interest Income from
Bank Deposits 197.23 339.55
Other Interest 50.50 91.85
Others 3.24 365.74
Prior Period adjustments 27.96
Other non-operating Income - -
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 2.79 0.03
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain - -
Miscellaneous Income
Total 281.72 797.17
25 Cost of Materials/ Services consumed
Cost of materials /Service consumed 13,875.71 12,588.62
Total 13,875.71 12,588.62
26 Changes in Inventories
Opening Stock
Maintenance Spares & Components 455.66 103.97
455.66 103.97
Closing Stock
Maintenance Spares & Components 488.93 455.66
488.93 455.66
Total 33.27 351.69
27 Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries and Wages 11,824.89 10,654.49
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 691.03 641.94
Staff Welfare Expenses 859.31 816.45
Total 13,375.23 12,112.87
28 Finance Charges
Interest Expenses 57.45 195.07
Interest on Income Tax Demand
Total 57.45 195.07
29 Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation 78.56 104.54
Amortisation
Total 78.56 104.54
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31-03-2024

As at 31-03-2024

Operational Energy Group India Limited

As at 31-03-2023

Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
30 Other Expenses
Operating Expenses (A)
Consumables & Tools 0.62 2.45
Diesel Expenses 5.73 6.68
Testing, Inspection and Calibration Charges - -
Other Operating Expenses -
Other Expenses (B) - -
Power and Fuel Charges 46.49 63.78
Rent Paid 96.66 98.45
Rates and Taxes 22.61 128.79
Insurance Charges 11.44 9.39
Bad Debts -0.89 2.37
Provision for Doubtful Debts - -
Repairs & Maintenance - -
-Buildings 0.41 -0.31
-Equipments 12.48 9.93
Security Service Charges 5.28 5.51
Brokeage and Commission 0.36 2.05
Communication Expenses 26.42 26.97
Directors' Sitting Fee and Commission 78.94 59.87
Printing & Stationery 25.87 32.00
Professional Charges 1,514.13 178.06
Payments to Auditors (Ref. note 30.1) 9.45 14.49
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 138.94
Subscriptions 2.27 3.15
Books and Periodicals 0.42 1.00
Business Promtion Expenses 85.10 40.29
Advertisement Expenses 3.00 3.10
Bank Charges 5.22 2.65
CSR Expenses 29.04 31.26
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain 0.09 1.98
Donation 2.15 -
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 180.80 148.85
Vehicle Repairs and Maintenance Expenses 50.47 55.74
Pooja Expenses 6.49 6.96
Licenses and permits 4.07 1.68
ROC Fees 0.02 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 26.10 46.29
Financial Services - Lebanon 34.75 33.11
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - -
Director remuneration 84.00 84.00
TOTAL 2,369.99 1,239.47

30.1 Payment to Auditors represents fee for Statutory audits

31. Earning Per Share

As at 31-03-2024

As at 31-03-2023

Profit After Tax (PAT)
Weighted average number of shares
Earning Per Share (Face value Rs.10/- each )
Basic
Dilluted

1,812.93
130.42

13.90
13.90

1,070.94
130.42

8.21
8.21

Operating Lease

Leasing of Immovable properties is treated as Operating lease as the tenure of the Lease is significantly lesser

than the economic life of the Assets leased out
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1. A - General Information:

Operational Energy Group India Limited (the Company), is a public limited Company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 of India. Its shares are listed in one recognized stock
exchange in India. The registered office of the Company is located at A,5™ Floor, Gokul Arcade — East Wing, 2 & 2A
Sardar Patel Road, Adyar, Chennai — 600 020.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of operation & maintenance of power plants.
1. B - Statement of compliance:

a). The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

1. C - Significant accounting policies:

a). Basis of preparation of financial statements

i). In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company is required to
prepare its Financial Statements as per the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act (the Act), 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 with effect from1st April, 2016 and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

ii). Pursuant to the above said requirements, the Company has prepared these Financial Statements which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”).

iii). The financial statements of the Company are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and historical cost
convention except for certain material items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant
Ind AS and explained in the ensuing policies below.

iv). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’) and all values are reported in full value without
rounding off except otherwise indicated.

b). Use of estimates and judgements

i). The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the
financial statements is made relying on these estimates.

ii). The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by
the Company and are based on past experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations
of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future
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periods. The critical accounting judgements and key estimates followed by the Company for preparation of financial
statements is described in Note 1(C) (s) herein.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain Financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and or disclosure
purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS-17, and measurements that have some

similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS-2 or value in use in Ind AS-36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date
e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly and
e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the schedule Il to the Companies Act. Based on the nature of Supplies and the time
involved in realization of the cash and cash equivalents for the same, the Company has determined its operating
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The significant accounting policies are detailed below.

c). Property, Plant and Equipment

i) . Cost model is adopted for Property, Plant and Equipment. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised as an asset if, and only if (a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the entity and (b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

ii). The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates,
any non-refundable import duties and other taxes, any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready
for its intended use by the Management, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected
costs of decommissioning.

iii). Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the
costs are incurred.
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iv). An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

v). Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative
purposes, are stated in the financial statements at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Freehold or Lease hold land is stated historical cost.

d). Intangible Assets

i). Anintangible asset is recognised if, and only if (a) it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and (b) the cost of the asset can be measured reliably as per the
assessment of the management.

ii). Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are initially recognized at Cost which
comprises of the purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly
attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use, and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

iii). Computer software costs are capitalized and recognised as intangible assets based on materiality, accounting
prudence and significant benefits expected to flow there from for a period longer than one year.

iv). An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

e). Depreciation/Amortisation

i). Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land) less their residual values
over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The useful life of an asset is the period over which an asset is
expected to be available for use by an entity.

ii). Amortisation is recognised on a straight- line basis over the estimated useful lives.

iii). Depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets added/disposed off
during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition/disposal.

iv). Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically as
appropriate in the views of the management and also at the end of each reporting period and adjusted if required.

v). Operating Software are amortised over a period of 3 years being their estimated useful life.
vi). There are no assets under Financial Lease during the Financial year

vii). Estimated useful lives of the assets, based on technical assessment by the Management, which are different in
certain cases from those prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act, are as follows:
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. Useful Life Estimated by Useful Life as per
Class of Property, Plant and Equipment ST Schedule II

Buildings 5-60 years 60 Years
Plant and Equipment 15 years 15 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 1-10 years 10 Years
Motor Cars and Scooters 4-10 years 8 Years
Office Equipment 2 -10 years 5 Years
Computers

Servers & Networks 6 Years 6 Years

End Users Devices 3 Years 3 Years

f). Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

i). At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

ii). There are no Intangible Assets with indefinite useful lives.

iii). An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv). When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

g). Borrowing Cost

i). Borrowing costs comprises of interest and other costs that are incurred by the

Company in connection with the borrowing of funds and also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded
as an adjustment to the finance costs.

ii). Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Qualifying Asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

h). Cash and Cash Equivalents and Cash Flow Statement
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand and demand deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
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amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding bank Cash
Credits repayable on demand, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Cash flow statements are reported using indirect method and the cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

i). Inventories
i). Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

ii). Inventories of stores, spare parts and loose tools are stated at the lower of cost under FIFO method and net
realizable value.

iii). Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories in the ordinary course of business less
all estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

j)- Loans & Advances, Trade Payables and Receivables

Advances, balances with government departments, Trade Payables and receivables, other loans and advances and
deposits classified under non-current and current are subject to confirmation. There are certain old balances
pending review / adjustment. The management does not expect any significant impact upon such reconciliation.

k). Revenue Recognition
i). Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

ii). The Company is engaged in the business of providing Operations and Maintenance (‘O&M'’) services to various
power plants and the revenues are governed by the Operations and Maintenance agreements entered with the
owners of these power plants. Revenue from Operation and maintenance (O&M) services rendered by the
Company to Power Plants Operators are recognised over the period of the contract on straight line method (vide
Ind AS 18.25) and unrecognized revenue (received in advance) is shown as unearned revenue.

iii). Revenue from sale of spares and consumables relevant for the O&M services are being incidental to the 0&M
Services and are recognised on delivery of the same to the customers and no significant uncertainty exists as to its
realization.

iv). Other revenues from ancillary activities incidental to the main operations of the Company and is recognised when
the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

v). Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably).

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably).

I). Foreign currency transactions

i). The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which
it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR). The Financial Statements are
presented in INR.
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ii). In preparing the financial statements of the Company transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (i.e, foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
iii). At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date (closing rate). Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

iv). Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

v). Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they arise.

m). Employee Benefits

i) Defined Contribution Plan

Eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution
plan, in which both employees and the Company as the employer makes monthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions are made to the provident fund and pension fund set
up by the Government. The Contributions to the Provident fund by the Company are recognized as expenses and
included in “Contribution to Provident and Other Fund” under employee benefit expenses in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

ii) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The
plan provides for a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, while in employment or on
termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service.

The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation. The
defined benefit plan for gratuity is funded. The liabilities for the gratuity obligations are recognized as expenses in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as per the actuarial valuation at the end of the reporting period.

The principal assumption used for Actuarial valuations of gratuity obligations is:

| 31% March, 2024 31% March, 2023 |
Discount Rate 7.21% 7.48%
Expected Salary Increment rate 7.00% 7.00%
Aver.age longevity at retirement age- Past ) 68 2.40
services
Aver.age longevity at retirement age- Future 9.04 8.59
services

The expenses recognized towards the defined contribution and defined benefit plan, by the Company are:

Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
31 March, 2024 31°% March, 2023
Defined Contribution Plan 557.60 459.96
Defined Benefit Plan 395.93 314.72
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n). Taxation

Income Tax expenses represents the aggregate amount included in the determination of Profit or Loss for the period
in respect of Current Tax and Deferred Tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

i) Current Tax

Current tax is determined on the Taxable Profits for the year chargeable to Income Tax, as per the provisions of
Income Tax Act, 1961 including other applicable tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the
applicable tax rates prescribed by said Income Tax laws.

ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is
recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred
income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or
the substantive enactment date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets relate to the same taxable entity and same taxation authority.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

iii). Minimum Alternative Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified period allowed by the prevailing tax
laws for adjustments of the credit with normal tax liabilities. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible
to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss. The
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income-
tax during the said specified period.
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o). Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company (the numerator) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (the denominator)
during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Potential
equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per
share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the
financial statements by the Board of Directors.

p). Provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments

i). Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

ii). The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

iii). When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

iv). A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is-

a. a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity

or

b. apresent obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because 1). it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or 2). the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

v). A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

vi). Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.

vii). Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.
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viii). Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

g). Financial Instruments

i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value. In the case of a financial asset or
financial liability measured not at fair value through profit or loss, the transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability are adjusted in the value of financial asset or
financial liability

ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

a. Financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: - amortised cost; or
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
- Fair value through profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses if any. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. A
financial asset is subsequently measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its
investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

b. Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses:

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised
in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
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method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial
liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Group's balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary
shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

r). Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

A lease is classified at the inception date as an operating lease. The Company does not have financial lease.

The Company as lessor:

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as lessee:

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments (discounted at the interest rate implicit
in the lease or at the entity’s incremental borrowing rate). The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for
the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits
accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

s) Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s
other components and whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete
financial information is available.
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The Executive and Managing Director of the Company is the ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the
meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes may evolve in connection with
performance assessment measures put in place. The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators. The Company is primarily engaged in “Operation
and Maintenance (O&M) of power plants” in domestic sector only during the current year.

t) Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

Key sources of estimation uncertainties:

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment: Management reviews the useful life and residual
values of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both
the technical life of the assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors
including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best
information available to the Management.

Impairment of property plant and equipment:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined
on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated
commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other
factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the
carrying value of assets.

Contingent Liabilities:

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the
Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify
reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognised. The
Claim against the company in respect of service tax is Rs.2,48,47,765/-. The Company has won the first case at
CESTAT and hence there is no requirement of contingent liability for this in the future period. Then other cases are
similar in nature and hence it is expected to be in favour of the company.

Fair value measurements:

Some of the Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The management
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurements. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

Defined benefit plans:

The cost of defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligations are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual development in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary escalations and
mortality rates etc. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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Lease:

The Company has offered its immovable property at Srivilliputhur on long term lease to an educational Trust. The said
lease is treated as Operating lease as the tenure of the Lease is significantly lesser than the economic life of the Assets
leased out, as per the estimate made by the Management.

Tax:

The Company is subject to tax, principally in India. The amount of tax payable in respect of any period is dependent upon
the interpretation of the relevant tax rules. Whilst an assessment must be made of deferred tax position of each entity
within the Company, these matters are inherently uncertain until the position of each entity is agreed with the relevant
tax authorities

The Company’s pending litigations comprise mainly claims against the Company, property disputes, proceedings pending
with Tax and other Authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made
adequate provisions, wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial
statements. The Company does not reasonably expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact on
its financial statements.

u. Inventories as at the reporting date:

Normally the Company procures inventories and other consumables for rendering its O&M services, EPC services
and for sales, being incidental activity in connection with the O&M service and EPC contracts, as and when the
requirements arise.

v- Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has laid down the CSR policy for the activities where the CSR funds shall be spent in accordance with
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Since the CSR provisions are applicable to the Company for the year 2023-
24, the amount of CSR spending and the Board had approved the donation to M/s. Yashas English School in Malli
Village to promote the cause of education. The school has been providing quality education to underprivileged
children free of cost since 2016.

The mandatory CSR spending for the year 2023-24 as per Section 135 Companies Act, 2013 is as follows:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.Lakhs)

Net Profit for the Financial year 2022-23 (A) 1376.23
Net Profit for the Financial year 2021-22 (B) 1385.22
Net Profit for the Financial year 2020-21 (C) 1089.23
Average Net Profit (A+B+C/ 3) 1283.56
2% of the average net profits — Amount to be spent as CSR during the FY 2023-24 25.67
(I) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 25.67
(i) Amount of expenditure incurred 29.04
(iii) shortfall at the end of the year 0
(iv) Total of Previous years shortfall 0
(v) Reason for Shortfall 0
(vi) Nature of CSR activities Donation to School
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(vii) Details of related party transactions,

E.g., Contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR
expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard: -

(viii) Where a provision is made with respect a liability incurred by entering into a
contractual obligation, the Movements in the provition during year shall be shown
separately. 0

M/s. Yashas English School is an ICSE affiliated school located in the village of Malli, Srivilliputtur, Tamilnadu. This
is the location where the company has commenced its operations in the year 1994. This School provides ICSE
standard education to the children of the village wherein no other ICSE schools are functioning.

Business Combinations:
The company does not have any Business Combinations.

Scheme of Arrangements:
There has been no Scheme of Arrangements entered into between the Company and its Subsidiaries.

Capital management & Risk Management Strategies:

Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The board of directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s
risk management policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management
policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced
by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to
the audit committee.

Capital management

The Company being in O&M service industry which requires huge working capital for its operation, its objective is
to maintain a strong credit rating healthy capital ratio and establish a capital structure that would maximise the
return to stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and equity.

The Company’s capital requirement is mainly to fund its working capital, repayment of principal and interest on its
borrowings and strategic acquisitions. The principal source of funding of the Company has been, and is expected to
continue to be, cash generated from its operations supplemented by funding through borrowings from Banks &
Financial Institutions.

The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversify its debt profile, reduce
interest cost and align maturity profile of its debt commensurate with life of the asset and closely monitors its
judicious allocation amongst competing capital expansion projects and strategic acquisitions, to capture market
opportunities at minimum risk.
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Financial risk management

The Company’s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company.
These risks include (i) Credit risk, (ii) Liquidity risk and (iii) Market risk

The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using periodic monitoring and action plans to cover up
risk exposures, wherever required. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including
derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining
sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The
Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored.

In addition, the Company is exposed to credit risk in relation to financial guarantees given to banks provided by the
Company. The Company’s maximum exposure in this respect is the maximum amount the Company could have to
pay if the guarantee is called on. No amount has been recognised in the financial position as financial liabilities.
The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including
the default risk of the industry.

Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers based on which the Company agrees on the credit
terms with customers in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses
expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute
the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. The provision matrix takes into
account available external and internal credit risk factors and the Company's historical experience for customers.

Aging Schedule of Receivables

Outstanding for the Following Periods from due date of Payment

Particular 6 Months | to 1 Year Years Years Years
(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables- considered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade
receivables - which have
significant increase in credit
risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade
receivables - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade
receivables - Considered good

Less than 6 Months 1to2 2to3 More than 3

4439.01 4439.01
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(v) Disputed Trade
receivables - which have
significant increase in credit
risk

(vi) Disputed Trade
receivables - credit impaired

Trade payables:

TRADE PAYABLES AGING SCHEDULE Rs in Lakhs
Outstanding for the Following Periods from due date of Payment

L han 1 \Y| h
. ess than 1to2Years 2to3Years LI Total
Particular ~ Year | Years

MSME 18.61 18.61
Others 2577.13 2577.13
Disputed Dues-MSME 0
Disputed Dues-Others 0

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short-term, medium-
term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return.

As of now, the Company has not entered into any sort of derivative contracts, in order to manage market risks.

Finance Lease Receivable
The Company does not have any finance lease receivable.
Financial Ratios Analysis

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR Rs in Lakhs

(a) Current Ratio Current Assets / 16308.24 10045.12 1.62 | 12525.88 7742.43 | 1.62 -0.35
Current Liabilities

(b) Debt-Equity Total Outside 10130.09 9152.49 1.11 7776.52 7539.61 | 1.03 -6.81
Ratio Liabilities/

Shareholders

Equity
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(c) Debt services Earning available 2009.13 57.45 | 34.97 1253.42 195.07 | 6.43 -81.63
Coverage Ratio, for debt service/

( Interest +

Instalments)
(d) Return on PAT / Equity 1633.93 9152.49 0.18 857.92 7539.61 | 0.11 | -36.26
Equity Ratio Shareholders

Funds
(e) Inventory Cost of Goods 13842.44 472.29 | 29.31 | 12236.93 279.81 |43.73 49.21
Turnover ratio, sold / Average

Inventory
(f) Trade Total Sales / 31479.05 4216.42 7.47 | 26345.13 3702.59 | 7.12 -4.69
Receivables Average Trade
turnover ratio, Receivables
(g) Trade payables | Total Purchase / 13842.44 2338.72 5.92 | 12236.93 2167.13 | 5.65 -4.60
turnover ratio, Average Trade

payables
(h) Net capital Sales / Capital 31479.05 9294.61 3.39 | 26345.13 7566.15 | 3.48 2.81
turnover ratio Employed
(i) Net profit ratio | Net profit (PAT)/ 1633.93 31479.05 0.05 857.92 26345.13 | 0.03 | -37.26

Sales
(j) Return on EBIT / Capital 2066.58 9294.61 0.22 1448.48 7566.15 | 0.19 -13.90
capital employed, | Employed
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Related Party Disclosures
The deemed related party transactions for the Financial Year 2023-24 of the company.

All the transactions have been approved by the Board and the Audit Committee, wherever necessary.

Related Party
SI.No \ Nature of Relationship Name of the related party
Pacific Technical Services Private Limited
Maxitech Engineering Private Limited
OEG Bangladesh Private Limited
1 Subsidiary Companies Pacific Imperial Thermal Private Ltd
OEG Defence and Aerospace Private Limited
OEG Nigeria Limited
2 Step down subsidiary Operational Energy Generation FZCO
3 Associate Zuppa OEG GENS5 Technologies Private Limited
4 Directors and Key Managerial | S. Ramesh (Chairman and Managing Director)
Personnels Usha Ramesh (Non- Executive Director)
N.S.R.Ganesh Babu (Independent Director)
P.Swaminathan (Independent Director)
S.V.Natarajan (Chief Financial Officer)
Ramya Sachin Inamdar (Company Secretary)
5 Relative of Director or Key | Sudarshan Ramesh (Son of Executive Managing Director)
Managerial Personnel Vijay Ramesh (Son of Executive Managing Director)
Lakshmi Pratha K (Daughter in law of Managing Director)
Kavitha Natarajan (wife of CFO)
6 Entities in which Directors, | South Ganga Waters Technologies Private Limited
K.MR or t}.1e1r relatives have OEG Solar Energy Private Limited
significant influence
Rockfort Engineering Industries
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Note No. - Related party Disclosures: Transactions with Related Parties

In lakhs
Particulars Subsidiary =~ Entitiesin Key Relativesof 50753 94 | 2022-23
/ Associate which KMP or | Managerial KMP

their Personnel

relatives have

significant

influence
Cost of - - - - - -
Services
received
Service - - - - - -
charges paid
Loans given 340.60 130.99 - - 47160 | 31883
Reimburseme - - - - - 1.06
nt of expenses

204.73 56.86 261.59
Remuneration - - 239.746
paid
Loans repaid - 35.00 7.99 - 42.99 62.14
Security - - - - -
Deposit given
. 41.58 41.58 42.16
Rent paid - - -
Service - 360.00 - - 360.00 360.00
Charges for
water
treatment
Outstanding Balance With related parties In lakhs

Entities in Key Relatives 2023-24 2022-23

Particulars |Subsidiary/
which KMP or Managerial of KMP

Associate

their relatives = Personnel
have significant

influence
581.59 246.25 24.37 ) 852.22 384.60
Loans given
430.25 1174.00 - - 1604.25 1450.85
[nvestments
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Approval of financial statements:

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on 28-05-2024.

For Operational Energy Group India Limited For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0025108

S RAMESH N.S.R.GANESH BABU G. VIVEKANANTHAN
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN & INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR PARTNER
MANAGING DIRECTOR DIN NO: 06846188 MEMBERSHIP No. 028339
DIN NO: 00052842 UDIN:24028339BKHHXF2049
S. V. NATARAJAN RAMYA SACHIN INAMDAR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY

PLACE: CHENNAI
DATE: 28.05.2024
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